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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Operating Results for the Year

Medlbio Lirmited {formerly BioProspect Limited) {"Medibio”, "MEB® or “the Company”) and its contralled entities |"the
proup”} generated a loss after tax of 57,921,702 (2014: loss of 5428,332), This loss would be reduced to 52,087,826 11
the effecls of one off itéms such as the impairment of the legacy investment in Frontier Oil (53,861,034), costs
assoriated with the acquisition of the Circadian Heart Rate ["CHR") and algorithm development technology (51,011,382
and 5444,999), and the amortisation of patents {5516,461) were excluded.

Key highlights include;

«  Restructuring the acquisition of Invatec Health Pty Ltd ['Invatec’) and the capital structure ol Medibio. This
proposal was approved by shareholders an & March 2015 and s major components were:-

o The Invatoc acquisition was compleled by the acquisition of all the issued capital of Invatec by the
issuc of 25,537,506 post consclidation shares, representing 28.4% of the company's issued capital.

o Al Convertible Motes on issue were canverled inlo the Company's securities,

o Recent capital raisings were ratifled relnstating the 15% issuing capacity.

 The issued capital of the company was consolidated on a 1 for 100 basis.
Approval was given lo raise up to 53,000,000 by placement to professional and sophisticated
investars.

1 The Group has Incurred 51,011,382 in legal and consulting costs in relation to the acquisition of
Invates and the restructuring of Medibio capital,

s |mpairment of the Frontier Gil Corporation (‘FOC) investment, This has resulted in 53,861,034 of the total
loss far the year,

s Impairment of the Goodwill on acquisition of a private company acquired during the year. This has resulted
In 5444929 of the total loss for the year.

« Amortisation of patonts and intellectual property rights including licences resulted in a charge of 5516,461 in
the year.

The Company raised additional equity of 53,477,000 from 2 capital raisings and $685,000 from Convertible Motes
converted into eguity.

Review of Operations

During the year the company continued to make excellent progress towards cammercialising its unigquo cvidence-
based objoctive tests to assist in the diagnosis of depression, other mental health disordars, and chronic stross,
Medibio's proprictary technology comprises algorithms for the diagnosis of a number of mental health conditions
utilizing the analysis of Circadlan Heart Rate {"CHR") variability waveforms. Sleep is the key measurement period when
external influences are absenl. The technolopy has multiple commercialisation routes in the medical, corporate and

consumer markets, with each vertical representing a multi-billion dollar market opportunity and potential revenue
stream,.

Key milestones achieved over the past 12 months include:

e Lhe completion of the development of Medibio's cloud-based scalable Corporate Stress Product;

o execution of the first commercial service agreement to provide this product to 8 major corporation
(completed subsequent to 30 June 2015);

« commencement of the first study with the UNSW at the Black Dog Institute clinic;
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Review of Operations (continued)
s agreement with lohns Hopking University to undertake a clinlcal validation study in the US; and

s |odpement of two provisional patents applications which, i granted, will provide an additional 20 years of
oxclusivity for the diagnosis of mental heoalth disorders and stress using CHR.

United States business development meetings

Post the end of the financial year executive management af the company visited the United States to undertake a
serios of meetings with major carporations which had expressed an interest in partnering with Medibio and Lo discuss
resparch collaboration with a number of leading universities,

The company executed Man-Disclosure Agresments (NDA's) with four US-based corporations Ineluding device
manufacturers, Integrated health and wellness providers and technology companies. A series of positive meetings
wara held with a number of the |eading universities in the US and Canada, with all institutions visited expressing a
desire to collaborate on research.

This rosearch will focus on using CHE for the diagnosls of:
= [Depression;
e Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder;
& Anxicty Disorder;
o Mixed depression and anxiety;
e Panic Disorder.

Some institutions have existing data that can be used to fast-track blinded validation trials of Medibio's technology.
Medibio anticipates it will be in a positon to begin to execule formal collaboration agreements and announce
additional details of these studies in the coming manths.

Australian trial - University of New South Wales

The first study of Meditilo's CHR technalogy being conducted by the University of New South Wales (UNSW) at the
Black Dog Institute (BDI) clinic processed its first participant, with 80 planned participants due to complete the
assessment by the end of this year. The study is designed to demonstrate that MEB's Circadian Heart Rate Variability
technology is the first ohjective diagnastic tool able to distinguish between the two subsets of depression: melancholic
and non-melancholic depression. The study will involve serial monitoring of the participants before and after
treatment.

Us-based clinical validation study — Johns Hopkins University of Medicine
medibio is currently completing an independent clinical valldation study of its CHR Technolegy in conjunction with the
lohns Hopkins University School of Medicine, located in Baltimore, Maryland, USA,

The study will:
s Specifically determine whether CHR can provide objective physiological data to differentiate between
individuals with clinical depression and individuals without clinlcal depression; and
»  Assess the clinical validity of a proprietary software algorithm, developed by Medibio that detects depression
by measuring CHR variability clinically,

Data collected from the study will be Utllised to suppeort an application for US Food and Drug Administration (FDA)
certification of the cormpany’s propristary soflware algorithm. Data collection is due to be completed towards the end
of Q1 2016.




REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Appointment of NAMSA

Leading US-based rogulatory advisory and clinical research organisation NAMSA was appointed to assist with trial
design, regulatory discusslons, and Medibio’s 510{k) submission o the FDA relating to its depression diaghostic,
MAMSA is a global cantract research arganization (CRO} with a broad depth of experience in the US, EU, South
America, Asia, and other geographies. It began operations in Toledo Ohio in 1967. NAMSA has over 00 assoclates,
with offices across the US, UK, France, Germany and China, and individual employees in many other countrics, MARMSS
currently have customer base of over 5000 clients and have asslsted these clients with a wide variety of services,
including over 200 successful 510(k) submissions.

MARSA will work with Johns Hopkins University in the USA to ensure that Medibio's validation studies are designed Lo
test and satisfy FDA regulatory reguirements,

Creation of evidence-based ‘stress test’

The company has produced and validated what it believes to be the world's first evidence-based tesl Lo measure
stress levels and its Impact on health and wellbeing using its patented CHR technology, The product also includes a
series of app-based intervention (or treatment) modules tailored specifically for employoes’ stress lavels.

A series of now algorithms were developed to measure the type and degree of deviation of the subject’s CHR from
normal and the signillcance of this deviation, The new algorithms accurately classify individuals into one of three
categaries based on the impact stress has had an their health and wellbeing:

e«  Mormal to mild: Where no immedlale action needed;
= Moderate; The impact of stress is approaching unhealthy levels; and
= Serjous Stress has had an unhealthy impact & lifestyle changes are recommended.

Internal validation testing returned excellent results with sensitivities and specificitics in excess of 280% for correctly
assessing the subject into one of these three stress categories. This compares favourably to the diagnostic accuracy of
traditional scif-report questionnaires for assessing stress levels that are typically In the 40-60% range.

subsequent to the end of the financlal year Mediblo announced two key milestones related Lo [Ls corporate stress
product,

1} The completion of the development and testing its cloud based scalable corporate stress product. This
incorporates end-fo-end automation Including streaming of live data from a range of ECG maonitors via the
front end app on a range of smart phones; to its cloud based proprietary algorithms and data analytics
salution: and near real-time rosults back Lo the front-end app.

2) The execution of the first commaercial service agreement to provide its corporate stress evaluation product
with a major Australian corporation with more than 10,000 staff/contractors. Medibio will generate revenue
of 5100 per participant from each pilot phase of the program with revenue anticipated this calendar year.
Contingent an eammercial pilat results, it is anticipaled that Medibio’s corporate stross product will be rolled
out across the organisation’s entire staff base.

There are many potentlal markets for the ‘stress test’ that offer significant benefits to Medibio upon successful
commercialisation. The company continues to develop these plans. The company is in discussions with @ number of
potential custamers for its stress product ahead of the commercial launch.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Commercialisation Study completed

In February 2015, the Ametus Group delivered a comprehensive independent commercialisation assessment of
Medibia's CHR techinalogy for the US market. The Ametus Group is based in Minnesota, USA and |s one of the leading
independent medical consulling groups in the United States.

The key points from the assessment were:

e L1552 2bn revenue opportunity in the US which is likely to be highly profitable;

=« Existing reimbursement codes which may be leveraged for commercialisation;

#  Ready acceptance of the technology upon the receipt ol FDA approval;

s Mo competing FDA approved evidence-based products to assist clinicians; and

s Potential market share af 5% within 5 years would generate annual revenue of approximately US5100
millian.

Intellectual property
The company lodged a series of provisional patents throughout the year, including:

s The provisional application titled “Method and System for assessing Mental 5tate”, was filed in the US under
provisional application serial no. 62/175,796. This patent covers discoverics made over the past 18 months and
will, if granted, complement and extend the existing patent suite covering mental health diagnasis held by
Medibio; and

s The provisiinal application titled “Method and System for Monitaring Stress Conditions”, has been filed in the US
under provisional application serial no. 62/175,826. This palent covers Medibio's objective test to measure the
level of stress and its impact on health and wellbeing,

The company intends to seelo patent protection in major jurisdictions including, but not limited to, Australia, the USA,
the UK, EU, Japan, China, and Russia. The applications, once granted, will provide 20 years of exclusivity for the
diagnnsis of mental health disorders using CHR technology and assure the company’s manopoly rights in the US,

Board Changes
During the year, the company announced several key appointmeants:

&  Mr Chris Indermaur — Mon Executive Chairman;

o N IKris Knauer — Executive Director;

«  [Drlames Campbell - Mon Executive Director,

= D Franklyn G. Prendergast (M.D., Ph.D.) - appointed to the company’s Advisory Board,;
s MrSlephen Pearce - Advisory Board;

s [r Hans Stampfer - Advisory Board,; and

»  [rStephen Addis - Advisory Beard.

During the year, Mr Vince Fayad retired as a Dircctar, and Mon-Executive Chairman of the company as did Claude
Solitario, Peter May and Silvi EIKhourd. '
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DIRECTORS REPORT

Your directors present the Annual Report on the consolidaled entity, being Medibio Limited (formerly BioProspect
Limited} and its controlled entitics {"Group”} for the financial year ended 30 lune 2015,

Directors

The names and detalls of the company’s directors in office during the financial year and until the date of this report
arc as follows. Directors were in office for this entire period unless atherwise stated.

Mames, qualifications, experience and spacial responsibilities

Current Directors
Chris Indermaur
Qualifications:

Experience:

Kris Knauer

Qualifications:

Experience:

James Campbell

Qualifications:

Experience:

Chairman
B. Eng. (Mech.), Grad Dip Eng. {Chem.), LLB, LLM, Grad Dip LP
Wr Indermaur was appointed te the Medibio Board on 7 April 2015,

W Indermaur has over 30 years of experience in large Australian companies in Engincering
ar Commercial rales. Amangst these roles he was the engineering and Contracts Manager
lar the OGNI MNickel Refinery at Yabulu, Company Secretary for QAL and General Managor far
Strategy and Development at Alinta Ltd.

Mr Indermaur is currently Chairman of Poseidon Mickel Limited {ASX: POS) (director from
20043,

Executive Director
B. 5¢. [Hons} in Geology

Mir Knauer was appointed to the Board on 1 July 2014 and he took on the role of CEOQ in
September 2014,

Krls has 20 years' experience in Finance and Corporate Advisory and he is an experienced
CEC ol ASX-listed companies. He has had a previous role as CEQ in a group owning GP
Centres and Radiology practices. He also founded and grew an ASX-listed company fram sub
%3 milllon valuation to 5300 million valuation prior to a $1bn takeover,

W [Knauer wis formerly a direclor of Astro Resources ML (ASK ARO) from 2013 to August
2015, Esperance Minerals Limiled (ASX: ESM) from 2009 to August 2015 and of Greenvale
Energy ML from 2014 to May 2015,

Mon-oxecutive Directar
PhD MEBA

Dr Camphbell was appeinted to the Board on 8 September 2014, Heis a senior biotechnology
execullve with maore than 20 wyears international experience in scientific research,
managerment consulting and venture capital, Dr Camphell has held research positions at the
CMRS and the CSIRO. Dr Camphbell was a founding executive at ChemGenex Pharmacouticals
where far over 9 years he assisted the growth of the company's market capitalizatian fram
510 million to the final 5230 millian divestment in 2011,

Dr Camphell s Managing Directar of Patrys Limited (ASX: PAB) (from November 2014} and
Mon-executive director of the ASX-listed biotechnology companies Invien Limited [ASX: VX]
from 2012, and Prescient Therapeutics Limited (ASX: FTX] from 2014,
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DIRECTORS REPORT

Farmer Directors

Vincent Fayad

Peter May

Silvi Elkhouri

Claude Solitario

Wr Faysd was appointed ta the Medibio Board on 28 Aprll 2014 and subsequently became Chairman. Mr
Fayad resigned on ' April 2015

Mr Fayad Is currently a Director of PKF Lawler Corporate Finahce Pty Ltd and has over 30 years of
experience | Corporato Finance, accounting and other advisory related services. He also has had
oxpetience in advising blotech companies on fund raising and corporate strategy, He is also a member of
the Chartered Accountants Australla and Mew Zealand and is a registered tax agenland company auditor,
Mr Fayad |s a hoh-oxecutive Director of Ashley Services Grp Led [A5X: ASH) appointed Aug 2014 and [ormer
non-executive Director of Esperance Minerals Limited {A%55; E5SM) from Februany 2013 to August 2015,

8r May was appointed as a Director on 1% Movember 2012, subseguently became Chalrman on 15
Mewvermbor 2013, stood down as Chalrman on 28 April 2014 and resigned as 8 non-execitive Dlrector on 1
July 2014,

Nir May's career has included positions with Incitec and Crop Care Australasia, where he managed a multi-
millian dallar product portfolio, toll formulatlon and International business development, Mr May |5 an
active member of the Australian Environmental Pest Managers Association [AEPMA] and has established
excellent contacts within the pest control and general agribusiness and anlmal health sectors, Mr May has
nol been a director of any other ASXK listed company,

s Elkhourl was appointed to the Board on 15 November 2013 and resigned 8 September 2014,

tds Clkhouri has had extensive International business and finance experience and asslsiad |n several
rerger and acquisition transactions involving listed and unlisted companies, Ms Elkouri has worked
as a corporate strategy consultant for private companies In Australia and the Middle East, During the
past three years. M Ellchour has not bean a director of any other ASK lisked company.

M Solitario was appointed 28 Aprit 2014 and resigned 8 Septamber 2014,

pr Solicario who founded Invatec Health Pty Ltel, with Dr Stephen Addis in 2005, joined the board as an
Exerullve Director. Mr Solitario Has been instrumental in the growth of Invatec since its inception In hls
role as CEQ, Mr Solltarlo has aver 25 years of experience in the development and commercialisation of
intellectual property. Durlng the past three years. Mr Solitario has nol been a directar of any other AS
[isted company.

Executive Management

Robert Lees
Qualifications:

Experlence:

Campany Secretary
B. Bus, {UTS), Grad. Dip. DP (UTS], CA, AGEA

Mr Lees was appointed Company Secretary and Chicf Financial Officer on 30 September 2042,
Mr Lees is rosponsible Tor complying with all the governance requirements of a listed company
and preparation of all linancial and management reports for the Medibio group of companies.

In the last 14 years he has provided Company Secretarial services to soveral small ASY listed
companies, This has included involvement in 10 IPO's and back door listings. He Is eurrently
Campany Secretary of 4 other listed public companies,
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Interasts in the shares and options of the Company and related bodies corporate
A5 at the date of this report, the interests of the directors in the shares and options of Medibio Limited were:

Options over

Ordinary Ordinary
Shares Shares
C. Indermaur 150,000 Nil
IK. Knauer 6,440,541 3,000,000
1. Campbell il 250,000

Dividends
Mo dividends have been paid or provided during the year ended 20 June 2015 (2014 nil),
Principal Activities

The princlpal activily of the Group is conducting research and development and early stage commercialisation of the
following:

» adingnostic technology for mental health which is based on clreadian heart rate {CHR) data.

Business Review

Operating Resuits

The consolidated loss of tho Group was 57,921,702 {2014: loss of 5428 332).
Significant Changes in the State of Affairs

With tho exception of those mallers disclosed in Note 24, there are no other matters that are likely to affect the state
of affairs or financial pesition of the Group.

Future Developments

Likely developments in the operations of the Group in future financial years, are referred to in the Review of
Operallons.

Eveits Subsequent to Balance Date

Apart from the matters set out bolow and in Note 24 of the Financlal Statements, and the issue of 53,092,035 of
shares {further details of these notes can be found on Note 16) there are no matters or circumstances that have arisen
since the end of the financial year that have significantly affected either;

= the Group's operations in financial yoar 2015; or

« future prospects.

Other Information
Options

On 1 April 2015 a total of 21,666,667 options were issued, 6,666,667 with an exercise price of 30cents expiring 1 April
2017, 15,000,000 with an exercise price of W0cents expiring 1 April 2018, On 2 April 2015 136,658 options were
exerclsed for 136,658 shares and at the date of this report there were 21,530,009 unissued ordinary shares under
option.
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DIRECTORS REPORT

Environmental issues

The Group's operations arc not regulated by any significant environmental regulation under a law ol the
Commonwealth or of a state or torritory.

indemnifying officers or ouditors
insurence of officers

During the financial year, Medibio Limited paid a premium to insurc the directors and secrelaries of the Group and its
Australian entitios.

The liabilities insured are legal costs that may be incurred in defending civil ar criminal proceedings that may he
brought against the officors in their capacily as officers of entities in the Group, and any other payments arising from
liabilities incurred by the officers in connection with such proceedings. This does not include such liabllities Lhat arise
frorm conduct involving a wilful breach of duty by the officers or the improper use by the officers of their position or of
infarmation to gain advantage for themselves or someane else or to cause detriment to the Group. [Lis not possible to
appattion the premium between amounts relating to the insurance against legal costs and those relating to other
liabilities.

The Group has not otherwise, during or since the end of the financial year, except to the cxtent permitted by law,
indemnilied or agreed to indemnify an offlcer or auditor of the Group or of any related body corporate against a
liability incurred as such an officer or auditor.

Details of the premium paid in respect of insurance palicies are not disclosed as such disclosure is prohibited under
terms of the contracl.

Proceedings an behalf of the Company

Mo persan has applied ta the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings an
behalf of the Group, of to intervene in any proceedings o which the Group is a party, for the purpose of taking
respansibility on behalf of the Group for all or part of those praceedings,
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DIRECTORS REPORT

Remuneration Report [Audited)

This report outlines the key management personal (KMP) remuneration arrangements of the Company and the Group
in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and its regulations. For the purposes of this report,
KMP of the Group are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the major activities of the Company and the Group, directly and indirectly, including any director (whether
executive or othorwise] of the parent company.

Far the purposes of this report, tho torm ‘executive’ encompasses Lhe chiel linancial officery company secretary and
the Marketing Manager.

Details of key monagement personnel

B Directors
V. Fayad Chairman [non-executive) — appointed 28 April 2014 and resigned 7 April 2018
C. Indermaur Chalrman [non-executive] — appainted 7 April 2015
1. Camphbell Diractor {non-executive] — appointed 8 September 2014
K. Knauer Oirector (executive] —appointed T uly 2014
C. Solitario Director [executive} — appointed 28 April 2014 —resigned B September 2014
5. ElKhouri Rirector [non-executive) appolnted 15 November 2013 — resigned 8 September 2014
P. D. May Directar (non-executive) —appointed 19 November 2012, appointed Chairman
15 Movember 2013, ceased as Chairman 24 April 2014 & resigned 1 July 2014
il. Execufives

5. Stapelberg Marketing —appointed 1 May 2014
R. E. Lees Chief Financial Officer/Company Secretary — appointed 30 September 2012

Remuneration Phidosophy

The performance of the Group depends upan the quality of its directors and executives. To perform Lo satisfactory
levels, the Company must attract, motivate and retain highly skilled directors and executives.

The Board of Directors is responsible for determining and revicwing componsation arrangerments for the directors,
and the execulive leamn. The Board assesses the appropriatencss of the naturc and amount of emoluments of such
officers on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall objective of
ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality Board and executive team.

To assist in achieving the objectives, the Board considers the nature and amount of executive directors’ and aofficers’
emolumentsin the context of the Group's financlal and operational performance,

Remuneration structure

In accordanco with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non-executive director and senior manager
retnuneration is separate and distinel.
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DIRECTORS REPORY

Remuneration Report (audited) {continued)
Nan-executive director remuneration
Obfective

The Goard seeks Lo set remuneration at a level which provides the Company with the ability ta attract and retain
directors of the approptiate calibre, whilst ineurring a cost which is acceptable to shareholders given the size and
financial standing of the Company.

Structure

The constitution of the Company specifies that non-execulive directors are entitled ta be paid, out of the funds of the
Company, an amount of remuneration which:
a. doos not;

i in any year exceed Inaggregate the amount last fixed by ordinary resolution; ar

il. cansist af a commission oh or percentage of profits or operating revenue; and

b is allocated among them:
E on an equal basis having regard to the proportion of the relevant year for which each director held office;
or
ii. as otherwise decided by the Board,

Each directar receives a fee for belng a director of the Company. According to Lhe constitution of the Company, if a
director, at the request of the Board performs extra services or makes special exertlons {including going or living away
fram the director’s usual residential address), the Company may pay thal director a fixed sum set by the Board for
doing so. Rermuneration under this rule may be either in addition to or in substitution for any remuneration to which
Lhat director is entitled.

The retmuneration of non-exccutive directars for the period ended 30 June 2015 is detalled In Table 1 on page 12 of
this report.

senior manager and executive director remuneration {executives)
Objective

The Company aims to reward exccutives with a level of remuneratioh commeonsurate with their position and
respansibillties within the Company and taking Inlo account the size and financial standing of the Company and so as
to ensure tatal remuneration is compaetitive by markel standards,

Strudure

In determining the level and make—up of execulive remuneration, the Board considers market levels of remuneration
for comparable executive's roles far similar sized organisations, and preferably within the biotech industry.

Remuneration consists of fixed remuneration for all execulives with a variable element for the achicvement of both
short term and long term objectives,
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Remuneration Repaort (audited) (continued)
Fixed and Variable Remunerdgtion
Ohjective

The level of fixed remuneration is sot 5o as to provide a base level of remuneration, which Is both appropriate to the
position and is competitive in the market.

Fiked remuneration is reviewed annually by the Board and the process consists of a review of campanywide
performance and individual performance, relevant comparative remuneration in the market and, where apprapriate,
exlernal advice on policies and practices.

Strurclure

Executives are paid a fixed cash compaonent consisting of an annual salary plus the statulory superannuation and
anntial leave and long service leave abligations.

The fixed remuneration component of senior management in the Group is detailed In Table 1 below. Mo variable
remuneration is currently payable to Directors or management,

Consequence of company’s performance an shareholders” wealth

e Company is committed to maximising the value of its biotech and other assets through a portiolio of investments
and projecls. This cutrently comprises of:

s g dlagnostic technology for mental health which is hased on crcadian heart rate data generally known as heart
rale monitor Heart Rate Variability technology; and

» products associated with animal health, skincare and agriculture — AGRIPRO”, REGEN', QCIDE™ and TERMILONE™
The I is being maintained while we look for purchasers.

As critical stapes of projects and investments are reached and produce positive rasults, significant value should be
gencrated to shareholders through an increase in the share price. As the Company is at least several years away from
penerating taxable profits, growth of sharehalder wealth will nat come thraugh the payment of dividends but by an
pxpected increase in the average share price.

Shareholder returns

30 June 2015 30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2011

Share price -cents 40,0 .4 a.l 0.2 0.8
Shares on issue 89,802,923 3,173,18%,272 2,873,174372  1,612,170,347  1,116,570,347
Capitalisatian 535.9m 512.6m 52.9m 53.2m SE.9m
Loss per share —cents (8.22) 10.0015) (0,058} {0.2) (0.3}
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Remuneration Report (audited) {continued)
Remuneration of key mandgement personnel

Tuble 1: Remuneration for the year ended 30 Jure 2015

Non- Post- Share
Short Term  Monetary Employment Based  Tarmination
Salary & Fees Benefits Super  Payments Payment Total
3 $ 5 5 s 5

Executive director
[ Knaucr a 152,000 - - - - 192,000
Non-executive directors

Y Fayad — Chairman b 51,167 - - - - 51,167
C Indermaur - Chairman c 5,694 - . 45,000 - 50,604
1 Camphbell d 29,200 - 2974 43,600 - 75,574
P May i - - - - - -
C Solitaric f - - " B -
5 Elkhouri g 33,000 - - - - 33,000
Sub-total directors 311,061 - 2,774 88,600 - 402,435
Other key management personnel (KMP)

S Stapelberg 97,152 - 7,808 - - 105,000
R E Loes 134,606 - - - - 134,606
Sub-total executive KMP 231,798 3 7,308 = - 239,606
Totals 542,359 - 10,582 88,600 - 642,041
a. Appointed 11uly 2014 [Short-term fee accrued); e Reslgned 1luly 2014;

b. Resigned 7 Agril 2015; f.  Resigned 8 Septermber 2014,

c. Appointed ¢ July 2015; g.  Reslgned 8 September 2014,

d. Appeinted B September 2014,

KRR transaction and halances are disclosed in Notes 13 and 18 to the Financial Statements.
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Remuneration Report (audited) (continued)
Table 2: Remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2014
Short Term Post-Employment
Man- Monetary Termination
Salary & Fees Benefits S5Uper chare Based Payment Total
s 5 ] Payments 5 s

MNon-executive directors
W Willesee - Chairman a 22,500 - - : - 22,500
W Fayad ¢] 12,000 r = - - 12,000
B Cooper C 32,000 - - - - 32,000
C Solitario d - -
P May & L8833 - - - nH833
5 Elkhouri f 22,500 # & - 22,500
Sub-total non-executive
directors 147,833 - e = _ 147,833
Other key management personnal [KMP)
P may E 18,265 3 1,735 - 20,000
R Lees 96,591 - = - - 8G,591
Sub-total executive KMP 114,856 - 1,735 = - 116,591
Totals 262,689 - 1,735 - - 264,424
4. Reslgned 15 November 2013; e, Reslgned 1 July 2014;
b Appointed 28 April 2014; f. Rosigned & September 2014;
¢, Reslgned 28 April 2014, g Appolinted 1 May 2014,
d.  Appointed 28 Aprll 2014;
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DIRECTORS REPORT

Remuneration Report (audited) (continued)

Table 3: Optlon holdings of key monagement personnel (consolidated)

Options held in Medibio Limited fnumber] fpost-consofidation)

Balance at

30 Jlune 2015 1uly 14

Granted As
Remuneration

Options
Forfeited

Medibio

Uenithad

MNet Change
Other

Vested at
30 June 15
Total

Balance At
30 June 15

Directors

W Fayad

C Indermaur
1 Camphell
I Knauer

P May

C Solitario

S Elkhouri
Executives

S Stapelborg -
R Lees -
Total -

m = m an o2
i

a. Resigned 7 april 2015;

b. Appointed 7 April 2015;

¢, Mppointed 8 September 2014,
d. Appointed 1 July 2014;

250,000

250,000

Options held in Medibio Limited {number) (pre-consalidation)

Balance at

30 June 2014 1 July 13

Granted As
Remuneration

3,000,000

3,000,000

e, Resigned 1 luly 2014;

i. Reslgned & September 2004;
g, Mesigned & September 2004,

Options
Forfeited

Met Change
Other

- 250,000
3,000,000 3,000,000

3,000,000 3,250,000

Vested at
30 June 14
Total

Balance At
30 June 14

Directors
W Willesee
W Fayad

B Cooper

C Solitario
F May

S Ellkchouri
Executives
5 stapelborg g -
R Lees Z
Total 17,000,000

15,000,00

2,000,000

—h T o oW

0

Resighod 15 Movember 2013;
Appointed 28 April 2014;
Resigned 28 April 2014,
,Appointed 28 April 2014;

X

=
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(15,000,000)

(2,000,000}

(17,000,000)

&, Reslgned 1 July 2014;

f. Resigned 7 september 2014,

g, Appolnted 1 May 2014,
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DIRECTORS REPORT

Remuneration Report {audited} {continued)

Medibio

Limifad

Table 4: Shareholdings of key management personnel {consolidated)

Shares held in Medibio Limited (number) (post-consolidation)

On

Balance Granted as  exercise of MNet change Balance
30 June 2015 1 July 14 remuneration optians other 30 June 15
Directors
W Fayad a - - - - =
CiIndermaur b - 150,000 - - 150,000
1 Camphell t - - . -
[ Knauer d - - - 6,440,541 €,440,541
P Iay e 26,522 - - (26,522) -
C Solitaric | 693,424 - - (93,424}
S Elkhouri E - r - - -
Executives
5 Stapelberg - - - - -
R Lees - - - - -
Total 719,946 150,000 - 5,720,595 6,590,541
a. Resigne 7 April 2015; g, Resipned 1 July 2014;
b. Appointed Chalrman 7 April 2015; f. Reslgned 7 September 2014,
c. Appointed 8 September 2014 g. Resigned 7 September 2014,
. Appointed 1 July 2014;
Shares held in Medibio Limited {number) {pre-consalidation)

On

Balance Granted as exercise of  Net change Balance
30 June 2014 1luly13 remuneration options aother 30 June 14
Directors
WowWillesee a - - - - -
W Fayad b - - - - -
B Cooper £ - - - - -
C solitario d - - - 59,342,443 (9,342,443
P May 1) 2,652,175 - - 2,652,175
S Elkhouri ] - - - .
Executives
S Stapelbearg f - - - - -
R Lees - - - - -
Total 2,652,175 - - 69,342,443 71994618

a, Resigned 15 November 2013,
h. Appeinted Chairman 28 April 2004;
t. Reslgned 28 april 2014;

MEDIBIO LIMITED | ANMUAL REPORT 2015
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DIRECTORS REPORT

Directors’ Meetings

The numhber of meetings of directors {Including meetings of committees of directors) held during the year and the
numhber of meetings attended by each director was as follows:

Audit commitiee

Eligible to Number Number
attend attended Eligible to attend attended
Chris Indermaur 1 1 4 -
Kriz Knauer 6 G = -
lamas Camphall 4 ES 1 1
W Fayad B G 1 1
C Salitario 3 3 - -
P ilay 1 : !
5 ElKhauri 3 3 -

Committes membership
As at the date of this report, Lhe Company had no separato committees, other than the audit committee,
Auditor Mon-Audit Services

The followling non-audit services were provided by the entity's auditor, William Buck (Qd). The directors are satisfied
that the provision of non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditars imposed
by tho Corporations Act 2001 and APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. The nature and scope of each
type of non-audit service provided means thal auditer independence was not compramised.

william Buck received the lollowing amaounts for the provision of non-audit services:

2015 2014
Tax compliance 12,575 ®,150
Olher 90 595

Auditor Independence
The auditar's independonce declaration has been received and can be found on page 17,

sipned in accordance with a resalution of the direclors

Chrls indermaur
Chairman

30 Septermber 2015
Sydney, NSW
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»» William Buck

AUDITOR’'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 to the Directors of
Medihio Limited

| declare that, to the hest of my knowledge and belief during the year ended 30 June 2015 there have been:

s no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set oul In the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to
the audit; and

s no contraventions of any applicable code of profossional conduct [n relation to the audit,

Wﬂmuu M/

Willlam Buck (Qld)
ABM: 11 603 627 400

M, Ayco
A Mermber of the Firm

Dated this 20th day of Seplember, 2015
Brizhane

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
A ADVIGORS

Lawel 21, 307 Queen Strast
Brisbane GLD 4000

GFO Box 563

Bt GLO 4000

Telophone: « 61 7 3228 5100
wililambuck.com

Praxity.;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANACE

mMedibio Limited {‘Medibio’) through its Board of Directors {‘Board’) is responsible for the overall corporate
governance of Medibio and has adopted as a guiding principle that it act honestly, conscientiously and fairly in
arcardance with the law and in the interests of the shareholders with a wiew ta building sustainable value far them,
the Company's employees and other stakeholders in the Company,

The Board has adopled a suite of governance materials which are available in the Corporate Governance section of
the Company's wehsite, The governance materials have been prepared and adopted on the basis that corporate
governance procedures can add to the performance of the Company and the creation of shareholder value, and help
to engender the conlidence of the investment markel.

ASX Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations

This statement sets out the material governance principles and processes adopted by the Board, The Board supports
the Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations, 3" cdition as released by the ASX Corporate Governance
Council {“ASX Principles or “"ASKCGC"). The Board considers and applies these recommendations to the extent there
is a sound reason to do so given Lhe circumstances of the Company. The Corporate Governance Statocmonts were
reviewed and approved by the Board on 19 June 2015 and are available on the Company's website:
hilp:/ fwww. medibio.com.aufindex.php/about/corparate-governance
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS & OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year Ended 30 June 2015
COMNSOLIDATED

2015 2014
Mote 5 5
Profit on sale of investment - 463,194
CHher income _ 261,933 5,9?6 _
Revenue 5 261,933 470,170
Finance cosls 5 {160,622} {107,221}
Amaortisation & Depreciation [516,461) =
Employee costs 5 (492,435) (138,833)
Impairmenl of investiments 5 {4,306,033) :
Research and development expenscs (210,664) {15,091)
Other expenses 5 e (2,457,420 (637,357)
Loss before income tax (7,921,702} (428,332)
Incowme tax benefit (¥ . - -
Loss attributable to members of Medibio Limited (7.921,702) (428,332)
Other comprehensive income
- Ttems that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total other comprehensive income for the period net of tax i - -
Total comprehensive income attributable to members of
Medibio (7,921,702) {428,332)
Baslc earnings per share (cents per share} 7 {1G.995) (0.015)
Diluted sarnings per share {cents per share| 7 [16.995) (D.015)

The above consolidated statement of profit or foss and other comprehensive fncome should be read in conjunction with
the gecompanying noetes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION

As at 30 June 2015

CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014

MNote 5 5
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents & 944,301 95,249
Trade: and olher receivables 9 232,985 132,303
Frepayments 8,091 B 9,081
Total Current Assets 1,186,377 237,733
Mon-current Assets
Avallable for sale investments 10 - 4,461,034
Intangibles assels 12 13,998,137 343,750
Total Non-current Assets 13,998,137 4,804,784
TOTAL ASSETS 15,184,514 5,042,517
LIABILITIES
Current Liabllities
Trade and other payables 13 2,380,280 431,240
Borrowings 14 197,500 1,500,000
Total Current Liabilitias 2,577,780 1,931,240
Mon-current Liabilities
Borrowings 14 3,495,653 355,000
Other payalies 15 = 6,006
Total Non-current Liabllities 3,495,652 401,008
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,073,433 2,332,246
NET ASSETS 9,111,081 2,710,271
EQLITY
Issued capital 16 (a) 51,053,889 37,250,977
Reserves 22 479,600 -
Arcumulated lossos (42,462,408 (24,540,706)
TOTAL EQLITY 9,111,081 2,710,271

Ihe nhove consolidoted stolement af financial position should he read in conjunction with the accompanifig notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN EQUITY

For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Share Based

Accurmulated Payments
Issued Capital Losses Reserve Total Equity
5 § & 5

At 1 July 2013 36,650,527 (37,024,324) 2,011,950 2,538,152
Comprehensive income
Lass for the period - (428,332) - [428,332)
Other comprehensive income - = - 3
Total comprehensive Income - (428,332) - (428,332)
Transactions with owners
Shares issued 600,450 - - GO0, 450
Share aptions lapsed - 2,911,550 {2,911 950) .
Total transactions with owners 600,450 - . 600,450
At 30 June 2014 37,250,977 {34,540,708) - 2,710,271
At 1 July 2014 37,250,977 (34,540,708) " 2,710,271
Comprehensive income
Loss far the period - (7,921,702} - [7,921,702)
Dther comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive Income - {7,921,702) - (7,921,702)
Transactions with owners
Shares issued 14,393,862 - - 14,353,862
Share options issued - > 479,600 479,600
Share Issue costs (550,9510) - - (550,950
Total transactions with owners o 13,842,912 - 479,600 14,322,512
At 30 June 2015 51,093,889 (42,462,408) 479,600 9,111,081

The ahove consalidated statement of changes in equity showld be read in confunction with the gccompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014
Note 5 3
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from cuslomers - 8,225
R&D Grant received 255,120 -
Paymenls to suppliers and employees _ (1,770,203) (G19,482)
Met cash flows used in operating activities Bia) (1,515,083} (611,257)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest recelved 6,813 6,076
Fayments for intanglble assets (1,087,181) (343,750)
Proceeds fram sale of available for sale investrments o 1,690,425
Payments [or acguisitions {10,000} -
met cash flows {used in} provided by investing activities {1,090,368) 1,353,651
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issues of shares and options 3,432,000 450
Transaction costs of issue of shares {550,950) -
Repayment of convertible notes - (1,200,000
Proceeds [rom issue of convertible notes B85,000 395,000
Interest paid (112,940} {22,532)
Mat cash flows from {used in) financing activities 3,453,110 (827,082)
Mel {decrease] [ increase Incash and cash cquivalents 843,659 (84,682)
Met cash acguired in husiness combinations 393 -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 96,249 180,937
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year g 944,301 09E,249

The above consofidated statement of cash flaws should be read in confunction with the accompanying notes,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

1, CORPORATE INFORMATION

Medibia Limited (farmerly BioProspect Limited) {the parent) ('Medibic’) is a Tor profit company limited by shares
incarporated in Australia whose shares are publicly traded an the Australian Securities Exchange. The nature of the
operations and principal activities of the Group are describad in the Directars’ Report,

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Basis of preparation

These financial statements are general-purpese financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Corporotions Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative
pronauncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. The financial statements have also been prepared on
a historical cost basis, cxcopt for avallable-for-sale investrments, which have been measured at fair value,

The fnanclal statements have beon prepared on a going concern basis, as set aut In note 16{c). Medibio and the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern s dependent upan its ability to penerate suffident cash from future
operations and to raise additional capital.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASBE has concluded would result in financial
statoments contalning relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. Compliance with
Australian Actounting Standards ensures that the financial statements and notes also comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards, The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the Group
in the preparation of the financial statements. The accounting policies have been consistently apphied, unless
othorwise stated.

The financial statoments are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest dallar unless
otherwise stated.

b, New and revised accounting standards for Application in Future Perlods

The AASE has issued new and amended accounting standards and Interpretations that have mandatory application
dates for future reporting periods and which the Group has decided nol Lo early adopt, A discussion of thase future
requirements and their impacl on the Group is as follows:

AASE O Fingncial instruments (December 2014) and AASE 2014-7 Amendments to Australion Accounting Standards
grising fram AASE 9 {December 2014) fapplicatle for annual reporting periods commencing on or affer 2 January
2018}

AASE 9 includes requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets, the accaunting
requircments for financial liahilities, impairment testing requirements and hedge accounting requirements.

The changes made to accounting requirements by these standards include:

= simplifying the classifications of financial assets into those carried at amortised cost and those carried at
fair value and an allowance for debt instruments to be carried at fair value through ather comprehensive
income in certain circumstances

s« simplifying the requirements for embedded derivatives

s allowing an rrevocable election an initial recognition to present gains ahd losses on investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading in other comprehensive income. Dividends in respect of
these investments that are a return an investment can be recognised in profit or loss and there is no
impairment or recycling on disposal of the instrument

e [inancial assets will need to be reclassifled where there is a change in an entity's business madel as they
are initially classified based on {a) the objective of the entity’s business madel for managing the financial
assets; and (b) the characteristics of the contractual cash flows
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

s amending the rules for financial liabilitios that the entity elects to measure at fair value, reguiring
changes in fair value attributed to the entity’s own credit risk to be presented in other camprehensive
income

» Introducing new general hedge accounting requirements intended to more closely align hedge
accounting with risk management activitles as well as the addition of new disclosure requirements

s requircments for impairment of fnancial assets

The Group has not yet assessed the impact of this standard.

AASE 2014-8 Amendments to Australlan Accounting Standards avising from AASE @ {December 2014) — Application
of AASE 9 {December 2009) and AASE 9 (Decembar 2010} fapplicable for annual reporting perfads commencing on
or after 1 fonuory 2015)

This standard limits the application of the existing versions of AASE 9 (AASE 9 (December 2009) and AASE 9
(December 2010)) from 1 February 2015,

AASE 14 Reguiatory Deferrof Accounts and AASE 2014 -1 Amendmenls [o Australian Accounting Stondards [Part
0 {opplicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after I lanuary 2016)

AASE 14 applies only to an entity’s first Australian-Aceounting Standards financial statements where they canduct
rate regulated activity and recognise amounts that gualify as regulatary deferral account balances. AASE 2014-1
[Part I} makes consequential amendments Lo AASE 1 First-time Adoption of Australian Accounting Standards.
This standard will not impact the entity,

This standard is not expected to impact the Group,

AASE 15 Revenue from Controcts with Customers and AASE 2014-5 Amendments to Ausiralian Accounting
Standards arising from AASE 15 {applicatde for annual reporting periods commencing on of after 1 January 2017)

AASE 15 establishes a single, comprehensive framewark for revenue recognition, and replaces the provious
revenue Standards AASE 118 Revenue and AASE 111 Construction Contracts, and the related Interprotations on
revenUe recagnition Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, Intorpretation 15 Agreements for the
Construction of Real Estate, Intorpretation 18 Transfors of Assets from Customers and Interpretation 131
Revenue— Barter Transactions Invalving Advertising Services.

AASE 15 introduces a five step process for revenue recagnition with the core principle of the new Standard heing
lor entities to recognise revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to custamers in amaunts that reflect
the cansideration (Lhat is, payment) to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services,

AASE 15 will also result in enhanced disclosures about revenue, provide guidance for transactions that were not
previoushy addressed comprehensively {for example, service revenue and contract modifications) and Improve

guidance far mulliple-element arrangements.

The Group has nol yet assessed the impact of this standard,

—  AASAE 1056 Superannuation Entities (opplicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2016)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

AASB 1056 is applicable for superannuation entities which are regulated by APRA and incrense the fevel af
integration between AASB 1056 and other AASB standards, Some of the changes in AASB 1056 include;

s« Arevised definition of a superannuation entity

e Revised and consistont content far the financlal statements

s Use of fair value rather than net market value for measuring assets and liabilities

s Revised member liability recognition and measurement requirements

»  Revised disclosure principles

This standard s not expected to impact the Group.

_ AASH 2014-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in foint
Operations {opplicable far annual reporting periads commencing on or after 1 fonuory 2016)

This standard amends AASE 11 to provide guidance an the accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
sperations in which the activity constitutes a business. The amendments require the acquirer of an interestin a
joint operation in which the activity constitutes a business to apply all of the principles in AASB 3 and other
fustralian Accounting Standards except for those principles that conflict with the glidance in AASE 11 in
accounting for Lhe acquisition. AASB 2014-3 also requires disclosure of the information required by AASE 3 and
other Australian Accounting Standards for business combinations,

This standard is not expected to impact the Group.

__ AASEH 2014-4 Amendments to Austration Accounting Standards — Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

This standard amends AASE 116 and AASB 138 to establish the principle for the basis of depreciation and
amorlisation as being the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits of an asset and to
clarify that the use of revenuc-based methods to calculate the dopreciation of an asset s not appropriate. The
standard also clarliles that revenue is generally presumed ta be an inappropriate basis for measuring the
consumption of the economic benelits embodicd in an intangible asset. This presumption, however, can be
rebutted in certain llmited circumstances,

This standard is not expected to impact the Group.

AASE 7014 6 Amendments ta Australion Accounting Standards — Agriculture: Bearer Plants [AASE 101, AASE 116,
AASB 117, AASE 123, AASE 136, AASE 140 & AASB 141] (applicable for annuaf reporling periods commencing on
or after 1 fanuary 2016}

This standard amends the accounting for bearer plants to now be the same as property, plant and equipment in
AMSE 116 Property, Plant and Equipment, because their operalion is similar ta that af manufacturing.
Consequently, the amendments include them within the scope of ANSE 116, instead of AASE 141 and therefore
ehtitios can choose to measure them at cost or fair value. The produce growing on bearer plants will remain
within the scope of AASE 141,

This standard is not cxpected to impact the Group,

__ AASB 2014-9 Amentdments ta Australion Accounting Standards — Equity Method in Sepgrate Financial Statements
fapplicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 tonuary 2016)
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This standard will allow entitios to use the equity method to account for its intorest in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and assaciates in separate financial slatements and mnkes editorial corrections ta AASE 127,

This standard is not expected ta impact the Group.

— AASH 2014-10 Amendments to Australion Accounting Standards — Sale ar Contribution of Assefs between an
Investar and its Associgte or Joint Venture {applicable for onnual reparting perlods commencing on or after 1
tanuary 2016)

The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in AASE 10 and those in
AASE 128 {2011), in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets botween an Investor and its associate ar joint
venture,

The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction invalves a
business (whether it |s housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognised when a Lransaction
Invalves assets that do not constitute a business, even if theso assels are housed in a subsidiary.

This standard is not expected to impact the Group.

— AASE 2015 1 Amendments to Austrafion Accounting Stondards — Annual Improvements to Australian Accounting
Standards 2012-2014 Cycle [AASE 1, AASE 2, AASE 3, AASE 5, AASB 7, AASR 11, AASE 110, AASB 115, AAEO 121,
AASE 133, AASE 134, AASE 137 & AASE 140] (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1
fanuary 2016)

This standard makes various amendments to Accounting Standards as part of the International Accounting
standards Board (IASB) International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2012—
2014 Cycle including:

®  |FRS 5 —reclassification from held for sale to held for distribution to owners ar from held for distribulion to
nwners to held far sale is considered to the continuation of the ariginal plan of disposal;

» IFRS 7 —adds basls of conclusion to clarify disclosure requirements lor transferred financial assels and
offsetting arrangements,

s A5 19— conlirms that high quality corporate bonds ar national government bonds used to determine
discount rates must be in the same currency as the benefits paid to the employee; and

s 14534 —clarifies information about crass references in the interim financial report,

This standard is not expacted to impact the Group.

_ AASB 2015-7 Amendments to Australign Accounting Standards — Disclosure Inftiative: Amendments to AASE 101
{opplicable for annual reporting perfods commencing on ar gfter 1 fanuary 2016 !

The amendments aim at claritying 1AS 1 to address perceived impediments to preparers exorcising their
Judgement in prosenting their financial reports

This standard is not expected to impact the Group.

_ AASE 2015-3 Amendments to Australion Accounting Standards arising from the Withdrowel of AASE 1031
Materiality fapplicaide for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 fuly 2015 )
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This Standard completes the withdrawal of references to AASE 1031in all Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations, allowing that Standard to effectively he withdrawn.

This standard is not expected to impact the Group.

— AASA Z0I5-4 Amendments to Australion Accounting Standards — Financial Reporting Requirements for Australian
Groups with a Foreign Parent [AASE 127 & AASA 128] (appliceble for annual reporting periods commencing on of
after 1 July 2015}

This standard amends AASE 128 to require that, notwithstanding paragraphs 17 and Aus17.1 of AASE 128, Lthe
ultimate Australian entity shall apply the equity method In accounting for interests In associates and joint
ventures If either the entity or the group is a reparting entity, or both the entily and group are reparting entities,

This standard is not expectod to impact the Group.

_ AASE 2015-5 Amendments la Australion Accounting Standards — fnvestment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception [AASE 10, AASE 12 & AASB 128] fapplicable for gnnual reporling periods commencing on or after 1
January 2016)

This Standard amends AASE 10, AASE 12 and AASE 128 to canfirm that the exemption from preparing
consalidated financlal statements sot out in paragraph 4(a) of AASB 10 is available to a parent entity that isa
subsidiary of an investment entity, to clarify the applicability of AASB 12 to the financial statements of an
investment entity and Lo introduce relief in AASE 128 to permit a non-investment entity inveslor in an associate
or joint venture thal is an investment entity to retain the fair value through profit or loss measurement applind by
the assaciate or joinl venture to its subsidiaries.,

This standard is nol expected to impact the Group.

— 20i5.6 Amerndments to Australian Accounting Standords — Extending Reloted Party Disclosures to Not-for-Profit
Public Sector Entities (applicable for annual reparting periods commencing on or after 1 july 2016)

This standard makes amendments to AASE 124 ta specily consistent rolated parly disclosure requirements for the
Australian Government, State Gavernments, lacal councils and ether not-for-prafit public sector entities.

This standard is nat expected Lo impact the Group.

_ 2015-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Fair Value Disclosures of Not-far-Prafil Public Sector
Entities {applicable for annual reparting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2016)

This Standard relieves nol-for-profit public sector entities from the cerlain disclosure requirements contained in
AASE 13 for assets within the scope of AASE 116 that are held primarily for their current service potential rather
thar to generate future net cash inflows.

This standard is not expected to impact the Group,
The Group does not anticipate early adoption of any of the above Australian Accounting Standards or Interpretations.

The group has adapted all of the new revised or amending accounting standards and intorpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board that are mandatary for the current reporting peried. The adoption of these
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accounting standards and interpretations did nat have any significant impact on the financial perfarmance ar position
of the group,

¢. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial stalements of Medibio Limited and its controlled entities
as at 30 June 2015 {tho "Group”),

Subsidiarias are all Lhose entities {including speclal purpose entities) over which the Group has control, The Group
contrals an entity when it is exposed to or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ahility to affect those returns through the power Lo direct the activities at the entity.

The financial statements af the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parenl company, Using
consistent accounting polleles,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all inter-company balances and transactions, income and expenses
and profit and |osses resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in full,

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be
consalidated from the date on which contral s transferred out of the Group,

d. Foreign currency translation
i. Funclional and presentation currency

Both the functional and presentation currency of Medibio Limited and its subsidiaries is Australian dollars {4%), Each
entity In the Group determines (ts own functional currency using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

il. Tramsactions and balances

Transactions In foreign currencics are inltially recorded in the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the
date of Lthe transaction. Monctary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated at the rate
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. All cxchange dilferences are taken to profit and loss when
incurred.

e, Segment raporting

Operaling segments are identified and segment information is disclosed on the basis of internal reports that are
rogularly provided ta, or reviewed by, the Group’s chief operating decision maker which, for the Group, is the board of
direclors, In this regard, such information is provided using dilferent measures to thosc used in preparing the
statermment of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, and Statement of Financial Position. Reconciliations of
such management informatian to the statutory information cantained in the annual financial statements have been
included.

f. Revenus recognition

Revenue |s recognised to the cxtent that it is prabable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
rovenue can be reliably measured. The lollowing specific recognition eriteria must also be met before revenue is
rocognised:

i, 5aleof poods
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Revonue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. Risks and rewards of
awnership are considercd passed to the buyer st the time of delivery of the goads to the customer.

ii. Interestincome

Revenue is recopnised as Interest accrues using the effective interest method, This is a methad of calculating Lthe
amortised cast of & financial assct and allocating the interzst income over the relevant period using the effective
interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
lnancial asset to the net carrying amaunt af the financial asset.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of GST,
B Govermmeant g,rantﬂ

Government grants arc recognised when there s reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with,

When the grant relates to an expense jtem, it is recognised as income aver the periods necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that itis intended to compensate,

When the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited o a deferred income account and is released Lo the
Statement of Profit ar Loss and Other Camprehensive Income over the expected uselul life of the relevant asset by
egual annual instalments.

h. Bormrowing costs

Borrowing casts directly attributable Lo the acquisition, construction and production of assets that necessarily take a
substantial perlod of time to prepare for their intended use or sale, are added Lo the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale,

All other borrowing cosls are recognised in the Statement of Profll or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the
period in which they are incurred.

. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalentis in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at bank and in hand and shart-Lterm
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less thal are readily convertible to known amaunts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

j. Trade and other recelvables

Trade receivablos, which generally have 30 day terms are recognised and carried al original invoice amount less an
allowance for any uncollectible amounts.

Collectabllity of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis, Debts that are known Lo be uncallectible are
written off when identified. An allowance for doubtful debts is made when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect the debts,

K. Investments ond other financial assets
Recognition and De-recognition

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date the Group
commits to purchase the assel. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financlal assets under
contracts that require delivery af Lhe assets within the period established generally by regulation or convention in the
market place. Financial assets are derecognised when the right to recelve cash flows from the financial assets have
expired ar been transferred.
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I.  Loans and recoivables

Loans and receivables including loan nates and loans to KMP are non-derivative financial assets with fived or
determinable payments that are not quotad in an active market. Such assets are carried at amoartised cost using the
offective Interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit or less and Other
Comprehensive Income when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired. These are included in current
assels, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months alter the end of the reporting period, which are
classifled as non-current.

i, Available-for-sale securities

Availablefor-sale investments are those non-derivative financial assets, principally equity securities thal are
designated as available-for-sale ar are not suitable to be classified as any of the three preceding categories. After
initial recognition avallable-for-sale securities are measured at fair value with gains or losses being recognised as a
separate companent of equity until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is determined Lo be
impaired, at which lime the cumulative galn or loss proviously reported in equity is recognised in the Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets are determined by refercnce to
quaoted market bid prices at the close of business at the end of the reporting period. For investments with no active
market, fair values are determined using valuation techniques, Such techniques include: using recent arm's length
market transactions; relerence to the cutrent market value of another instrument that |5 substantially the same;
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models making as much use of available and supportable market data
as possible and kecping judgemental inputs to a minimum,

V. Impairmient

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether thore is objective evidence that a financial
instrument has been impairad. In the case of available-for sale financial instruments, a significant or prolenged decling
in the value of the instiument is considered to determine whether impairment has arisen, Impairment losses are
recoghised in the Statement of Pralit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Incame,

. Income tax

The income tax expense {benefit) for the year comprises current income tax expense and deferred tax expense
(enefit).

Current tax assots and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expeocted Lo be
recovered from or pald to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
thal are enacted or substantively cnacted by the end of the reparting period.

Deforred income tax is provided on all temparary differences at the end of the reporting period belween the tax hascs
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.  Deferred income tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences except:

s when the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not @ business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; ot

« when the taxable temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries, assoclales or interests in
joint ventures, and the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference cannot be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferrod Income tax asscts are recognised for all deductible temparary differences, carry-forward of deferred tax
ascats and unused tax losses, Lo the extent that It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
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deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward af unused deferred tax assels and unused tax losses can he
utilized, except:

+  when the deferred Income tax asset relating to the deductible temparary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset of liability In a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transactian, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or

» when the deductible temporary difference is associated with investrnents in subsidiaries, associates or interests in
joint ventures, in which case a deferred tax assct is only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at the end of edach reporting period and reduced to the
extent thal iU is no longer probable that sufficient taxable prafit will be available to allow all or part of tho deferred
income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised delerred income tax assets are reassessed al the end of each reparting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recoverod,

Deferred incame tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have beon enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Income Laxes relating to items recognised dircetly In equity are recognised
in equity and naot in profit or loss.  Deferred tax assets and deferred lax liabilities are offset only i a logally
enforcoable right exists to set off current tax assels against current Lax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
liahilitics relate Lo the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Research and development tax offset claims are recognised as a tax benefit when itis probable thal the economic
benefits will flow Into the entity and the amaount can be reliably measured,

Medibilo Limited and the controlled entities In the tax consolldated Group continue o account for their own clrrent
and deferred tax amaunts. The Group has applied the Group allocation approach in determining the appropriate
amaunt af current taxes and deferred taxes Lo allocate to members of the tax cansalidaled Group,

m. Dther taxes

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of G5T except when the GST Incurred an a purchase
of goods and services is nat recoverable from the Laxation authority, In which case the GST is recognised as part of Lhe
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense jtem as applicable. Receivables and payables are stated with
the amount of G5T included,

The net amaourt of GST recoverable from, or payable ta, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payahbles in the Stalement of Financial Pesition.

Cash flows are included In the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis and the GST component of cash Flows arising
from imvesting and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the Laxation autharity dre classified as
operating cash flows.

Cornmitments and contingencles are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable fram, or pavable to, the taxation
autharity,

n. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquircd separately or in a business comhbination are initially measured at cost. The cost of an
intangible assel acquired In a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Fellowing initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
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expenditure is charged Lo the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the year in which
expendilure is incurrod.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impalrment annually sither individually or at the cash-
gencrating unit level, Such intangibles are not amortised. The useful lile of an intangible asset with an indefinite |ife is
reviewed al the end of nach reporting period Lo determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues Lo bhe
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate and is thus accounted for on a prospective basis,

Reseqrch and developmenl costs

Rosearch costs are expensed as incurred. An intangible asset arising from development expenditure on an internal
project is recagnised only when the Group can demaonstrate the technical feasihility of completing the intanglble asset
<o thal it will be available for use ar sale, its Intention ta complete and its ability to use or sell the assot, how the asset
will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the development and the ability to
measure reliably the cxpenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development,

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure, the cast medel is applied requiring the asset to be
carricd at cost less any accurmulated amortisation and accumulated Impairment |osses. Any finite life expenditure so
capitalised Is amaortised over the period of expected benefits from the related project. The carrying value ol an
intangible assel arising from development expenditure is tested for Impairment annually when the asset is nol yet
available for use, or more frequently when an indication of impairment arises during the reporling pericd,

Gaing or |osses arlsing from do recognition of an intangible asset arc measured as the difference befween the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are rocognised in profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised,

Impalrment of non-financial assets ather than goachwill

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment or more frequently If events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired, Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in creumstances indicate thal the carrying amount may
not bo recaverable, An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value ess costs to sell and valur in use. Far
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest |evels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash infllows from other assels or groups of assets (cash-
generating units), Mon-financlal assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are tested for possible reversal
of the impairment whenever events ar changes in circumstances indicate that the impairment may have reversed,

o. Trade and other payablas

Trado payables and other payables are carried at amortised cost angd represent lahilities far goods and services
provided 1o the Graup prior to the end of Lhe reporting period that are unpaid and arise when the Group becomes
obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of the poods and services. The amounts are unsecured
and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition,

Payables to related parties are carried at the principal amaunt, Interest, when charged by the lender, is recognised as
an expense on an acerual basis.

p. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Al loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received loss directly
attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, Interest-hearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amaortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Borrowings are classified as current liabllities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reparting period.

q. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past cvent, It
is probable that an outflow of resources embedying econamic benefits will be required ta settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance cantract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but enly when the reimbursement s virtually certain. The expensc
relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income net of any
reimhursement.

Provisians are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the cxpenditure required to settle the
present ohligation at the end of Lthe reporting period. If the effect of Lhe time value of moeney is material, provisions
are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the time value of money and the risks specific ta the liability.
The increase in the provision resulling from the passage of time is recognised in finance costs.

r. Employes benefits

Wiages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave

Liabilities lor wages and salaries, including non-monetary benelits, annual leave and long service leave expected to be
sattled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in current fabilities in respect of employees services up
to the reporting date and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Long service leave

& liahility for long service lcave 1s recognised, and is measured as the present value of expected future payments to be
rmade in rospect of services provided by employees up to the end of Lhe reporting period. Consideration is given [o
expected future wage and salary levels, exporience of emplover departures and periods of service, Expected fulure
payments are discounted using interest rates attaching, as at the end of the reporting perlod, to national government
puarantecd securities with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows,

#s of the 30 June 2015, the Group did not have any employeses with service Lo necessitate a provision for annual loave
ar long service loave.

5 Share-hased paymeant transactions
Cyuity settled tronsoctions
The Group provides benefits to its employees and directors in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees
and dircctors render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares {equity-settled transactians).

t. Contributed equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or aptions
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the procoeds.

u. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted Lo exclude
costs of servicing equity (other than dividends) and preference share dividends, divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element,
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Diluted EPS is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted for:

s costs of servicing equity (other than dividends);

+  the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been
recognised as expenses; and

« other non-discretionary changes in revenues of expenses during the period that would result from the dilution of
potential ardinary shares;

divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ardinary shares, adjusted for any
honus element.

v. Business combinations
Businecs combinations accur where an acquirer abtains control over one or mare businesses,

A business combination is accounted for by applying the acquisition method, unless 1L s a combination involving
antitics o businesses under common contral, The business combination will be accou nted for from the date that
control |5 attained, whereby tho fair value of the identifiable assels acquired and llakilities {including contingent
liabilities) assumed is recognised (subject to certain limited exceptions),

When measuring the consideration transferred in the business combinatlon, any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement is also included. Subsequent to initial recognition, contingent consideration
classifind as equity is not remeasured and 115 subseguent settlement is accounted for within eguity.

Al transaction costs incurred In relation to the business combination are expensed to the Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income,

The acquisition of a business may result in the recognition of goodwlll ot a gain from a bargain purchase,
W. Fair value measurament

When an asset ar liability, financial or nan-financial, is measured at lair value far recognition or disclosure purposes
the Tair value is basad on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to Lransfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date and assumes that the transaction will take place
either in the principle market or in the absence of a principle market, in the maost advantageous markel,

Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset ar liability,
assurning they act in their economic best intorest. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement is bazed onits
highest and best use. Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available to measure fair value, and used, maximising the usc of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unabservable inputs.

assels and liabilities measurod at fair value are classified, into three levels, using a {air value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measuraments. Classifications are reviewed each reporting date and
transfers hetweon levels are dotermined based on a reassessment of the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement,

For recurring and nan-recurring fair value measurements, external valuers may be used when internal expertise 15
sither not available or when the valuation js deemed to be signiflcant. External valuers are selocted based on market
knowledge and reputation, Where there is a significant change In fair value of anasset ar liability from one period to
anather, an analysis is undertaken, which includes a verification of the major inputs applied in the latest valuation and
a campatison, where applicable, with external sources of data.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

In applying the Group's accounting policies management continually evaluates judgments, estimates and assumptions
based on experience and other factors, Including expectations of future events that may have an impact on the Group.
All judgments, estimates and assumptions made are believed to be reasonable based on the most current set of
cireurmstances avallable to management. Actual results may differ fram the Judgments, estimates and assumptions.
Sighificant judgments, estimates and assumptions made by management in the preparation of these financial
slatements arc autlined helow:,

significont accaunting judgment

Impairment of assets and investments

The Group determines whether non-current assets (excluding goodwill and indefinite useful life intangible assets)
should be tested for impairment based on identified impairment triggers. At the end of each reporting period
management assesses the impairment triggers based on their knowledge and judgement. Where an impairment
trigger is identified, an estimate of the recoverable amount is required,
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4, SEGMENT REFORTING
Segiment Information

Identiflcation of reportable segments

The Group has identified its operating scgments based on the Interrial reports that are reviewed and used by the
board of direciors {chief operating decision makers) in assessing performance and determining the allocation of
resources.

The Group is managed primarily on the basis of product category and service offerings sinee the diversification of the
Group's operations inherently have notably different risk profiles and performance assessment criteria. Operating
sepments are therefore determined on the same basis.

Reportable segments disclosed are based on aggregating operating segments where the segments are considered to
hawve similar economic characteristics and are also similar with respect to the following:

= the products sold and/ar services provided by the segment;
= the manufacturing process;

s the type or class of customer for the products or service;

s the distribution method, and

o exlernal regulatory requirements.

Types of products and services by segment
i iining and Gas Exploration

This market segment includes the income and expenditures pertaining Lo the investment opportunity through Frontier
il Carporation. This asset is available Tor sale and fully impaired in these accounts,

il. Human Diagnostics

This market segment includes the income and expenditures pertaining to the investment opportunity through Invatec
Health Pty Ltd,
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Basis of accounting for purposes of reporting by operating segments
Accaunting policies adopted

Unless stated otherwise, all amounts reported o the Board of Directors as the chlef decision maker with respect to
operating segments are determined in accordance with accounting policies that are consistent with those adopted n
the annual financial statements of the Graup,

inter-seqment traonsoctions
For the reporting period there have not been any inter-segment sales.

Salaries for research and develapment employees have been allocated to markel segments on the hasis of time sheels
that support claims for the research and development tax offset credit, Corporate employee costs such as directors’
lees, salarins and superannuation are allocated to market segments on the basis of direct expenses and research and
developrmont salaries as a percentage of total expenses for the Group.

Inter-segment loans payable and receivable are initially recognised at the consideration received nel of transactian
cosls;

Seqment assets

In the majority of instances, segment assets are clearly identifiable an the basis of their nature (i.e. prepayments,

inventories, sundry debtors), Corporate fixed assets such as computer equipment and furniture and fittings have not
been allocated Lo marlet segments.

Segment lianilitics

Liahilitles are allocated to sepments where there is direct nexus between the liability incurred and the operations of
the segment, Scgment liabilities include trade and other payables.

Unallocated iterms

The following items of revenue, cxpense, assets and liabilities are not allocated to operating segments as they are not
considered part of the core operations of any scgment:

» Cash and lerm deposits;

s Intoresl received;

= prepayments;

= Fixed assets;

+ Baorrowings; and

« Other payablos.
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i segment performance

Mining Human

and Gas Diagnostics Tatal
Twelve months ended 30 June 2015 3 5 5
Revenue
Extornal sales - = -
R & D Grant - 255,120 255,120
Tolal segment rovenue - 255,120
Inter-sepment elimination % - -
Unallocated revenue 6,813
Total consolidated revenue 261,933

Mining Human

and Gas Diagnostics Total
Twelve manths ended 30 June 2015 5 5 5
segment net profit/{lossibefore tax (3,861,034} (2,244,216} {6,105,250)
Reconcifiation of segment
result o Group net loss before tox
Amaounts not included in segment
result but reviewed by the Board:
= Amaortisatian [516,461)
Unallacated items:
o Interest received B
& ([3ther corporate costs (1,206,804}
Met loss before tax (7,921,702)

Mining Human
Twelve months ended and Gas  Diagnostics Total
30 June 2014 5 5 5

Revenue

External sales

Total segment revienue
Inter-segment elimination
Unallocated revenue

Total consolidated revenue
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Mining Human

and Gas Diagnostics Total
Twelve months ended 30 June 2014 5 -3 5
segment net loss before tax 463,194 (A2,091) 381,103
Recanciiation of scgment
result to group net tnss before tax
amounts nat included in segment
result but reviewed by the Board:
s [Deprociation -
Unallocated items:
e Interestreceived 6,976
e Olher corporate costs {816,411)
Met loss before tax {428,332)
i Segment assets

Mining Human

and Gas  Diagnostics Total
30 June 2015 5 5 $
Segmenl assets - 14,231,122 14,231,122
Unallocated assets
a Cash 044 201
a  (ther 9,091
Total assets 15,184,514
30 June 2014 5 5 5
Sepment assels 3,861,034 043,750 4,804, 784
Unallocated assels
e Cash 96,249
a Other 141,484
Total assets 5,042,517
ii, segment Llabilities
30 June 2015 4 L 4
segment liabilitles - 5,506,909 5,506,905
Unallocated liahilities
Total liahilitles 5,566,909
30 June 2014 5 5 5
Segment lakilities B -
Unallocated liabilities 2,332,246
Total Hahilities 2,332,246
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

i, Revenue by geagraphical region

Australia

Revenue for the 2015 year included the R&D Grant rebate of 255,120 and bank interest ol 56,813,

For the 2014 year, revenue included profit of 5463194 fram the sale of Frontier Qil Carporation shares and bank

interest of 56,976,

. Assets by geographical region

all assets reside in one geographical region being Australia, other than the investment in Frentler Oil Corporation.

CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014
5 $
A REVEMUES AND EXPENSES
ta} Revenue
Gank intercst received and receivable 6,812 6,976
R&D Grant recelved 255,120 -
Gain on disposal of Frontier Oil Corporatian Shares - 463,154
261,933 470,170
(b} Finance costs
Intercst charges payable under convertible nates {160,622) (107,221)
{160,622) (107,221}
(c) Impairment
Frantier Ol Corporation {3,861,034) -
Goodwill {444,993} -
{4,306,033) a
(d} Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries {82,192} -
Directors [ees (369,781} (132,333}
Superanhuation (10,462} -
(492,435} (138,833)
{e] Other expenses
Cansulting and advisory expenses {1,288,074) {252,044)
Legal [ees (165,541 (93,160)
Listing fees {63,605] [23,976)
chare registry charges {86,735} {27,435)
Sales and marketing (85,290) {23,787}
Other administration expenses (808,115) [215,955)
{2,497,420) {637,357
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CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014
? 5
6. INCOME TAX
Mumerical reconciliation between aggregate tax expense recognlsed Tn the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and Lax expense
calculated per the statutory Income tax rate
A recanciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting loss before
income tax multiplied by the Group’s applicable income tax rate is as [ollows:
accounting loss before Lax {7,821.702) (428.332)
At the stalutory tax rate of 30% (2014 30%) (2,376,511} {128,500)
(2,376,511} (128,500}
Tax effect of temporary differences and current year loss not brought to
accounl 2,376,511 122,500
Deferred tax asset arising fram tax lossos not brought ta account at the end of
the reporting periad as realisation is not regarded as probable 251,400 G,804,040

The potantial deferred tax asset will only be obtained il:
i fulure assessable income is derived of a nature and af an amaunt sulficient to enable the benefit to be realizsed;
il. the conditions for deductibility imposed by tax legislation continue to be complied with; and

iii, no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Group in reallsing the bencfit.

The Group’s lax losses arising In Australia of $23,;211,110 at 30 June 2014 cannol be carried forward as a result of the
March 2015 acguisition and reconstructian of Medibio Limited. The cantinued availability of these carried forward
losses depended on the ability of the paront to satisfy the requirements of the conlinuity of ownership test {COT) or
alternatively the same business test (SBT). It is unable to satisfy either of these lests.

A 30 June 2015, there is no recognised or unrecognised deferred tax liability (2014: nil) for taxes thal would be
payable an the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries, as the Group has no llability for additianal
taxation should such amounts he remitted.

Tax consolidation

Effective 1 luly 2003, for the purposes of income taxation, Mediblo Lirnited and its 100% owned subsidiaries have
formed a tax consolidated group. Members of the group have entered into a tax sharing arrangement in order to
allocate income tax expense to the wholly-owned subsidiaries on a pro-rata basis. In addition the agreement provides
far the allocation of income tax liabllities between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment
olligations,
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Tax accounting by members of the tax consolidated group

members of the tax consolidated Group have entered into 3 tax funding arrangement. The tax funding arrangement
provides for the allocation of current taxes to members of the tax consolidated Group In accordance with the available
fractions belonging to each subsidiary, which is directly linked to priar year losses that have been accumulated. In the
event of the Company generating future taxable profits, the tax losses will he ahbsorbed according to the available
[ractions within the Group.

The allocatian of taxes under the tax funding agreement is recognised as an increasc/decrease in the subsidiaries’
intercompany accounts with the tax consolidated Group head company, hedibio Limited. The Group has applied the
Group allocation approach in determining the appropriate amount of current taxes to allocate to members of the tax
consolidated Group.

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE

COMPANY
2015 2014
5 %
Mel [oss attributable to equity holders of the Campany {7,921,702) [428,332)
Mumber of Number of
Shares Shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating basic and diluled
earnings per share: 46,611,766  2,503,662,290

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014

5 5

Cash at bank and in hand 210,696 6,343
Shart-term deposits 733,605 89,906
944,301 0g,249

Cash at banlk earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one month and three months, depending an the
Immetiate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rales.
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(a) Reconciliation of loss after tax to net cash flows from operations:

CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014
5 5
Met loss (7,921,702} (428,332)
Adjustments for:
Amortisation 516,461 -
Interest roceived 6,813) (6,976)
Interest paid convertible notes 164,622 107,221
Impairment of investmenls 4,306,033 -
lmpairment of receivables 100,000 -
Share based payrmonks 524,600
Profit an sale of investments - (463,194)
Changes in ossets and fiabilities:
(Increase)/ decrease in trade and other receivables [236,680) 8,225
{Decrease] / increase in trade and other payables 1,142,396 171,799
(Decrease] { increase in employee entitlements 28,516 -
Mat cash used in operating activities (1,515,083} (611,257)
(b} Man cash financing and investing activities
COMSOLIDATED
2015 2014
5 5
*|ssye of 25,000,000 shares to Heartlink as option fee - 50,000
*lssue of 125,000,000 shares to Heartlink for exercise of oplicn - 250,000
*ssue of 150,000,000 shares to Invatec for exercise of option - 300,000
150,000 shares issucd to C Indermaur 45,000 -
493,100 shares issued ta 5 Pearce 147,530 -
250,000 options ex at 50,30 issued to | Campbell 43,600 -
1,000,000 aptions ox at 50,30 issued o SEK Invostments Limited 174,400 -
1,500,000 aplions ex at 50.30 issued to Ausepen Py Ltd 261,600 -
672,530 600,000

The value placed an the issue of the shares was egual to the prevailing share price of Medibio as at the date of issue.

CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014
5 5
g, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade debtors - -
COther debtors 232,985 132,393
232,985 132,393

Terms and canditlons

L) Trade debtors are non-interest bearing and generally on 30 day terms. A provision for impairment is made
when there is abjective evidence that a trade receivable is impaired.

[ii} Other debtors are non-interest bearing and have repayment terms of 30 days. A provision for impairment is
rrade when there is objective evidence that a debtor is impaired.
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{ii}  Mane of the trade and other receivables are contraclually overdue.

Due to the short-term nature of these receivables their carrying amounts are assumed to approximate their fair value

10. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSET — AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014

MNotes ] 9

Frontier Qil Corporation —at directars valuallon [i) 3,361,024 3,861,034
Australian llsted shares at fair value {ii) 2,758 2,758
Impairment {3,863,792) {2,758)
Invater Health Pty Ltd (i) - AO0,000
- 4,461,034

(i) Frontier Oil Corporation

The company acquired 430,000,000 shares In Frontier Git Corparation ['FOC') for a Lotal investment cost of 55,188,265
during the year ended 30 June 2013, In September 2013, the Company sold 110,000,000 of its 430,000,000 shares
held in FOC for not funds of 51,650,425,

The investment is carried at original cost less disposals. This is an investment in an unlisted cntity and is therefors
difficult to obtain fair value, The directors, after reviowing the market and the recent drop in oil prices, have fully
impaired the investment,

{ii} Listed Shares

As 3t 30 June 2015, Medihio holds 47,544 Salagran Umited shares. Solagran Limited is in valuntary suspension and the
investment has been full impaired, This is the residual balance from a development agreement to commercialise
CGMC terminated in 2010.

{ll} Invatec Health Pty Ltd

During 2014, the Company entered into a 2 stage transaction to acquire an investment In Invatec Health Pty Lte
{‘Invatec’}). The first stage was for the right to subscribe for a 35% interest in Invatec (stage 1 subscription), The
investrment to fund Invatec and independent validatian Lrials is capped to a maximum of $3,500,000 over two years.
sccordingly, for every $50,000 funded, it will bo entitled to a 0.5% interestin Invatec. As at 30 lune 2014, the Group
was entitied to an approximately 6% shareholding in Invatec

As approved by sharehalders on 6 March 2015, Medibio acquired 100% of the issued capital of Invatec by the issue of
25,537,506 post consolidation shares [28.4% of the issued capilal of Medibio) Refer Note 11 - Busincss Combination,
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11.  BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Principal activity Date of Proportiocn  Consideration Consideration
aciuisition of shares shares issued
acouired 5 Mumber
2015
Invatec Health Pty Fatent holder & 2 April 2015 100% 7,661,250 25,537,500
Ltd developer of
Depression Algorithm
Annapanna Pty Ltd Research & 2 April 2015 100% 445,000 1,450,000

development provider

8,106,250 26,987,500

Invatec Hoalth Pty Ltd was scquired by the issue of 25,537,500 fully paid ardinary shares to its five shareholders.
Medibio gained contral of the patents, research and the intellectual property including patent data files owned by the
enlily, As part of the acquisition the Invatec Shareholders are also cntitied to 18,000,000 Milestone shares payable in 3
aqual tranches. The Milestone objectives must he achieved by 31 Docember 2019, The Milestones are:

(i} Tranche 1 - Milestone Shares will be issued on the completion of a clinical trial conducted by a reputable
research organisation either in Australia or in the United States of America or, 3 hody which is not related to
either Invatec ar the Campany which is designed to verify the CHR Technology:

{iy  Tranche 2 - Milestone Shares will be issued on the complotion of the development of a series of algorithms that
are capable of being documented and patented as proprictary intellectual property of sufficient quality, as
determined by a reputable research organisation either in Australia ar in the United States of America or a body
which Is nat related to either Invatec or the Comparny to allow automated diagnosis as necessary far the
commercialisation of the CHR Technology; and

(ii)  Tranche 3 - Milestone Shares will be issued on the CHR Technology being granted approval o cammercially
sxplait the CHR Technology so as to commence operations in either Australia and New Zealand and/or elther of

the:
) 1Js Food and Drug Administration;
b} Australian Therapeulic Goods Association; or
cl Conformitee Furopean or generally known as “CE Mark” or il necessary, European Medicines Agency,

Annapanna Pty Ltd was the Imvalec Health Ply Ltd due diigence contractor responsible for initial imvestigation of the
technology and contacting the researchers who performed data analysis and researched the algorithms developed. its
purchase secured control of all the intellectual property generated in that pracess.
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Assets acquired and liabllifies assumed at the date of acquisition

Current Assets
Cash & cash cqulvalents
Trade and other receivahles

Mon-Current Assets
Intangible — RED expenditure

Mon-Current Liabllities
Trade and other payables
Barrowings

CHher liakilities

Mon-Current Liabilities
Borrowings

Goodwlll arising on acquisition

Option to acquire costs

Conslderation

Less: fair value af identifinble net

assels acquired
Fair value of intangibles acquired
Less: Impairment of goodwlll

Goodwill arising on acquisition

Invatec Health #iy Ltd Annapanna Py Lid Total
L 5 $

392 1 303

26,755 t 26,755

1,797,242 - 1,797,942

[280,705) - {280,705)

{352,843} - (362,843}

{13,410} 5 (13,410)

{335,000) - (395,000}

773,131 1 773,132

Invatec Hoalth Pty Ltd Annapanna Pty Lid Total
% 5 5

400,000 - 400,000

7,661,250 445,000 8,106,250

1773,131) (1) (773,132}

7,288,118 7,288,112

(444,999) (444,999)

The fair value of the shares issued was detormined by reference to the current cost of obtaining the data files . The
Invatec data files have been collecled aver the past 15 years and consist of 24 hours of ECG data and either a
carresponding diagnosis or stross rating. Revenue since acquisition date was 141,367 and the amount of prolil of the
acquisilion since acquisition date included in the group loss was 592,627 Had all business combinations occurred at the
beginning of the year the loss would have increased by 277,759,
Thase results all rekite to Invatec Health Pty Ltd. The net assets of Invatec Health Piy Ltd rocognised in the financial
statermnents are a provisional assessment of their fair value as the Company is in the process of finalising the valuation of

intangible assets acquired,
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12. INTANGIBLES

COMSOLIDATED

2015 2014
5 5

Licence
Heartlink Limited
At cost 300,000 300,000
Amortisation {150,000) -
Impalrment - -
Met carrying amount 150,000 200,000
Development Costs _
At cost 43,750 -
Additions 3,078,052 43,750
Impairment - -
Mot carrying amount 3,121,802 43,750
Patents
At cost r -
Additions 3,298,153
Amartisation {366,461}
Impairment - -
Mel carrying amaunl 2,931,692 -
Data files
At cost - Z
Additions 7,794,643 -
Impairment =
MNet carrying amount 7,794,643 -
Goodwill
At cost - -
Addilions 444,099
Impairment {444,999) -
Met carrying ameunt - -
Reconciliation of carrying amount
Mel carrying amaunt at beginning of year 343,750 -
Additions 14,615,847 343,750
Amaortisation {516,461} -
Impairment {444,555) :
mlet carrylng amaount 13,998,137 343,750

Heartlink Licence

Heartlink Limited is an Australian public unlisted company. It is the registered holder of the Palents of an algorithm
4ssociated with the HRY technology, The Patents are held in Australia, Israel and New Zealand. These Patents are in
relation to technolopy thal provides a method for diagnosing psychiatric disorders by the analysis of heart rate

patterns. This Patented Technology, which is complementary to the processes being developed by Invatec.
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Development Costs

The algorithm and diagnostic system development costs incurred in the year by the development team have been
capitalised.

Patents

The company anncunced in April 2015, it acquisition of the US and Canadian patents which camplete the
consalidation of granted intellectual property that the company has targeted Lo support Medibio's commorcialisation
siratepy for its proprietary depression and mental health diaghastic technalogies.

13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — CURRENT
CONSCOLIDATED

2015 2014

Mote 4 ]

Trade payables i) 1,541,792 14,884
Other creditors and accruals (i 3B8,308 152,237
Accrued interest {iii} 12,211 103,564
1,942,311 206,685

Relatod party payables 437,969 34,555
2,280,280 431,240

Terms and conditions relating to the above financial instruments

i Trade creditors are non-interest bearing and normally settled on 30 day terms.
i, Other creditors are non-interest bearing and have repayment terms between 30 and 80 days.

ii. This amount reflects interest accrual on the convertible notes that have been issued as detalled in Mote 14
Interest is only payable an the date of maturity of nates.

Due ta the short term nalure of those payahles their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value,
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14. BORROWINGS

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013
5 5

Borrowings — Current Cories A — Convertible Maotes - 1,500,000
Invatec Sharehalders loan 157,500 -

197,500 1,500,000

Borrowings — Mon-Current Series B - Converlible Motes - 395,000
Promissory Mote 3,298,153 -

Invatec Shareholders loan 197,500 -

3,495,653 395,000

Total Borrowings 3,693,153 1,395,000

Convertible Notes

all the Series A and Series B Convertible Motes were converted into securities on 2 April 2015. This was approved by
sharehaolders at the General Meeting held & March 2015 for the notes nol approved at the carlier 15 Mavember 2013
meeting.

Promissory Note

On 21 April 2015 Medibio announced the acquisition of US and Canadian patents which completed the consolidation
of granted intellectual property thal the company had targeted lo supporl the commercialisation strategy of
wedibic’s proprietary depression and mental health diagnostic technologies.

The term of the nole is 3 years with 8% interest payable sermi-annually. Medibio can extend the period for an
additional 2 years incurring an additianal 2% interest. The patent owner can elect to be paid in cash or Medibio shares
at 50,31 per share,

invatec Sharehalders loan

Under the terms of the acguisition of the Invatec Health Pty Ltd [‘Invatec’] the outstanding sharehnlder loans were
reduced to $395,000, with half payable 13 months after completion (due 2 May 2016} of the acguisition and the
halance 26 manths after completion. The carrying value is considered a reasonable approximation to the fair value of
the loan.

15. OTHER PAYABLES (NON-CURRENT)
CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014
5 5
other creditors and accruals - G, 006

This amount reflects the interest accrual on the convertible notes thal were on issue, as detailed in Mole 14 above.
Interest is only payable on the date of malurity on Lhe notes.
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16.  ISSUED CAPITAL

2015 2014
5 5
a. Issued and paid up capital
Ordinary shares issucd and fully paid 51,003 889 37,250,977
MUMBER OF SHARES
2015 2014
b. iMlovements in shares on issue 2015 2014 5 5
Beginning of the linancial year 3,173,189,372 2,R8¥3,174,372 37,250,977 36,650,527
lssued during the year;
- aptions exercised 15,000 450
- share issues to Heartlink - 150,000,000 300,000
- share issues ta Invatec - 150,000,000 - 300,000
- share placement {1 333,333,332 - 1,000,000
- Canvertillle note — Series B i) 8,333,333 = 25,000 o
3,514, 856,036
Share Consolidation 100:1 (3,479,707,085) - . -
Post-consolidation shares on issue 35,148,947 - - -
Share placement (iii) H,256,668 - 2,477,000
Share issues to acquire Invatec {iv} 25,537,500 - 7,661,250 -
Convertibile note — Sorics B i) 3,516,665 - 1,055,000 -
Canvertible nole — Series A i) 15,000,000 = 1,500,000
Cantractor/consultant payments 543,100 - 192,930 =
share issues to acguire campany Lwi) 1,450,000 - 435,000 -
Convortible nole interest {wil} 113,328 - 34,016
Option exerciso [wiii} 136,658 = 13,666 -
l.oss: share issue costs - - [550,950) -
End of the linancial year 89,802,232 3,173,189,372 51,093,885 37,250,977
Notes
L} On 10 October 2014, the Company issued 333,333,332 ardinary shares at an issue price of 0,03 cent per

shares, This issue ralsed $1,000,000 {before |ssue costs), This placoment was completed post the share
consolidation raising a lurther 52,477,000 at $0.30 per share

{ii) On 24 Movember 2014, a Convertible note holder, converted $25,000 of Naotes, All the Convertible Motes
were converted to securities in April 2015

(it} On 2 April 2015 the company raised 52,477,000 by the placement of 8,256,668 shares to sophisticated and
professional investors,

{iv) Refer to Note 11 — Business cambination — acquisition of Invatec Health Py Lid
v Conversion of All Series A and B convertible notes as approved by shareholder at a General Meeting of &
March 2015,
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(ui) Rofer to Note 11 — Business combination — acquisition of Annapanna Pty Ltd

{wii} Interest on Convertible notes paid by issue of shares at $0.30 per share,

(i) Optian exercised on [ssue by application of acered Convertible Motes interest of 513,666 due to the
halder.

All shares issued above rank equally in all respects with the shares on issue at the beginning of the year.

o Capital management

When managing capital, management's objective i3 to ensure the entity continues as a galng concern as well as to
maintain optimal returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The company's debt and capital
includes ordinary share capital and financial liablilities, supported by financial assets. There are no externally imposed
capital reguiremaents.

Golng concern statement

As al 30 June 2015 the Group had net asset position of 59,111,081 (2014: 52,710,271). However, as at 30 June 2015,
it had.

o incurred a loss Tor the year of $7,921,702 (2014: 5428,332);

» cash outflow from operations of 51,515,083 {2014: $611,257);

e rash at bank of $544,301 (2014 596,249);

» trade creditors of 52,320,280 (2014 5431,240);

« borrowings (nan-current) from the acquisition of patents of %3,298,153, and shareholder |oans of 5197,500; and

s Current labilities in excess of current assets by 51,391,403 (2014 51,693,507)

The Group’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon the generation of cash fram operations, the
sufflciency of current cash reserves to meet existing obligations, the ability to reschedule planned research and
development activity, raising of further equily and receipt of research and development tax incentives.

I Note 24 the Group has disclosed that since year end it has ralsed $3,092,035 through the issue of $7,730,087 shares
oh B September 2015. Accordingly, Directors believe the Group will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due
for a periad of at least 12 manths from the date of these financial statements,
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d. Share Options

Options over ordinary shares:

2015
Mao. of
Options

2014
MNo. of Options

Unlisted Options

Exercisable an or before 1 April 2017 at 30 cents per share
Qutstanding at beginning of the year

Issued during the year

Lapsed during the year

Outstanding at end of the year

Exercisable on or before 1 April 2018 at 10 cents per share
Outstanding at beginning of the year

Issued during the year

Exercised during Lhe year

Lapsed during the year

Outstanding at end of the year

Exercisable on or before 31 December 2013 at 5 cents per share
Cutstanding at beginning of the year

Issued during the year

Lapsed during the year

Outstanding at end of the yoar

Exercisable on or before 31 December 2013 at 3 cents per share
Outstanding at beginning of the year

Issued during the year

Lapsed during Lhe year

Cutstanding at ond of the year

Listed Optlons

Exercisable on or before 31 December 2013 at 3 cents per share
Outstanding at beginning of the year

*Exarcised during the yoar

Lapsed during Lhe year

Outstanding at end of the year

Total options over unissued ordinary shares

Movements in share options

6,066,667

6,666,667

15,000,000
{136,658)

14,863,342

21,530,009

29,248,571

{29,248,571)

19,000,000

(1%9,000,000)

1,270,813,556
{15,000)
(1,270,798, 556)

v On 31 December 2013 2 series of the unlisted options and 1 series of listed option expired and lapsed.

s On the 2 April 2015, all Series A Canvertible Mote holders received an option attached to every share issued in
the conversion, Option terms are; - the options expire 1 April 2018 and are convertible on payment of 10 cents.

» As part of the April 2015 capltal raising sharos, cortain shares were issued with attached options. Option terms
are: - the options expire 1 April 2017 and arc convertible on payment of 30 conts.

s 0On 2 April 2015 a Canvertible Mote holder receiving options as part of the conversion terms, applied acerued
Interest payable of 513,666 and exerdised 136,658 options.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

. Termsand conditions of contributed equity

Ordinary shares have the right to recelve dividends as declared and, in the pvent of winding up of the Campany, Lo
participate In the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assels in proportion te the number of and amounts paid up on
shares held, after all other croditors have been paid,

Ordinary sharos entille their holder ta one vole, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the Company,

Ordinary shares have no par value,

17.  AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014
5 5
The auditor of Medibio Limited is William Buck [Qld)
Amaunls received or due and receivable for;
- audit ar review of the financial report of the entity and any ather entity in the Group 29,161 37,184
Other services in relation to the entity and any other entity in the Group:
- Law complianco 12 575 8,150
- AGR allendance E90 585
42,426 45,929
18. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONMEL
Short-term employee benefits 311,061 138,833
Post-employment benefits 2,774 -
Share-hased payments 88,600 -
Total campensation 402,435 138,833

Dotails of related party payables can be found in Mote 13,

19.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The consolidated financial statements include the linancial statements of Medibio Limited {the ultimale parent
company) and the subsidiaries listed in the followlng tahle,

% Equity Investment *
Country of Class of Interest 5
Name Incorporation Shares 2015 2014 2015 2014
BioProspoct Australia Py Lid™** Australia Ord 100 100 4,024,341 4,024 341
australian Phytochomicals Pty Lid*# Australia Ord 100 100 1,323,464 1,323,464
BioProspecl America Pty Ltd** Awstralia Ched 100 100 i 2
Re 5en Wellness Products Phy Lid*?* fustralia el 100 100 50,000 50,000
Medibio Limited — LISA**H* UsA - Delaware Crd 100 - 1,320 -
Invatec Health Poy Ltd®** Australia ord 100 B 8,061,250 600,000
Annapanna Py Lid*** Australia Ord 100 - 445,000 -

* Cost before provisioning. Reler to Note 10 for further investment disclosures,
** Dormanl entities
#4% Hyman health — CHR diagnestic development
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20.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s pringipal financial instruments comprise receivables, payables, cash, investmonts and short-term
feposits.

The main risles arising fram the Group's linancial instruments are credit risk, interest rate risk, foreign cxchange risk
and liquidity risk. The Group uses different methods to measure and manage different types of risks to which it is
exposed. These include monitoring the levels of expasure Lo interest rates and assessments of market forecast for
interest rates. Liguidity risk is monitored through the development of future rolling cash flow forecasts that are tabled
and reviewod at each board meeting,

Risk exposures and responses
Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, The Group's maximum exposures to credit risk al the end of the reporting period in relation to each class
of recognised linancial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as indicated in the Statement of Financial
Position. The Group minimiscs concentrations of credit risk in relation to trade receivables by having payment terms
of 30 days and receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group has currently
mever had an exposure to bad debls.

It s the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject fo credit verification
procedures,  Term deposits are placed with major financlal institutions to minimise the risk of default of
counterparties,

interest rote risk

The Graup’s exposure to market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's funds held on term deposit. At the end
of the reporting period the Group had the following mix of financial assets and liabilities expased to interest rate risk:

CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014
5 5

Financlal assets
Cash and cash equivalents 544,301 96,249

The Group's policy is to place funds an interest-bearing term deposit that are surplus to immediate requirements, The
Group's interost rale exposure is reviewed near the maturity date of term deposits, to assess whether more attraclive
rates are available without increasing risk. The fallowing sensitivity analysis is based on Lhe interest rate cxposures in
pxistence at the end of the reporting period:

At 30 June 2015, if interest rates had moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables held constant,
post-tax lnss and equity would have been affected as follows:
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Post tax loss Equity
Higher/ {lower) Higher/ {lower)
2015 2014 2015 2014
§ 5 5 5
Consolidated
+ 1% {100 basls points) 9,443 2,537 {9,443) {2,537)
- 0.5 % (50 points) (4,722} {1,803 4,724 1,903

The mavements in losses arc due Lo higher/ (lower) interest income from cash balances. There is no impact on equity
ather than impact on accumulated (osses,

Liquidity risk

The Group's ohjective is to maintain sufficient funds to finance its currenl operations and additional funds to ensure
its long-term survival. The Group has no finance facilities in place and therefore it is currently dependent on capital
ralsings and government tax Incentives for short term survival, Refor to note 16 for further details.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currencies an purchases of goods in currencles other than the Group's
functional currency. The group manages Lhe risk by monitoring the level of exposure Lo loreign currency transactions
and limiting whore possible,

Fair value

The carrying amount of all recognizsed financial assets and financial liabilities is considered a reasanable approximation
of their fair value due to their shorl term nature.

21, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Other than disclosed in note 11, there were no known contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2005,
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22, SHARE-BASED PAYIMENT PLANS
Recognised share-based payment expenses
a. The expense recognised for employee services recelved during the year is shown helow.

CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014
5 5
Expense arising from eguity-settled share-based payment transactions -
b. The cost recognised for consulting services rendered during the year.
25,000,000 shares Issued to Heartlink for exerclse of option = 50,000
125,000,000 shares issued to Heartlink for exercise of oplion = 250,000
150,000,000 shares issued to Invatec Tor exercise of optian B 300,000
150,000 shares issued to Cindermaur 45,000
493,100 shares issued to 5 Pearce 147,530
250,000 options ex at 50,30 issued Lo ] Camphell 43,600 =
1,000,000 opticns ex at 50.30 issued to SEK Investments Limited 174,400 -
1,500,000 options ex at 5030 ssued to Ausepen Pty Lid 261,600 -
TOTAL SHARE-BASED PAYNMENTS 672,530 600,000

Option pricing model
The fair value of the equity-seitled share options granted s estimated as at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes model taking
into account 1he terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.

The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the year ended 30 June 2015.

Black-Scholes

Dividend yield (%) .00
Expected wolatility (#5) 2004
Risk-free Intarest rate (%0} 2.631%
Expected life of nptions (years) 2
Option exercise price [5) 50,30
Welzhtod average share price at measurement date 50,320

[post-consolldation prices)

The reserve records items recognised as oxpenses on valuallon of options,
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23, PARENT ENTITY INFORMATION
2014 2014
$ $
Met loss attributablo to members of Medibia Limited (7,374, 764) (430,118}
Change in market value of available for sale financial assets - -
Total comprehensive Income for the year attributable to members of
Medibio Limited [7,374,764) (430,118)
Current assets 920,651 213,018
Total assets 14,470,274 5,017,802
Currcnt liabilities 1,420,273 1,812,635
Total liabilities 4,718,427 2,213,704
Issued Capital 51,093,889 37,250,977
Share bascd payments reserve 479,600 .
Retained earnings {41,521,642) {34,446,878)
Total equity 9,751,847 2,804,099
Contingent labilitles =
Capital and other expenditure commitments not provided for in the financial
slalements - 3,000

24, EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

Apart from the matters set oul below, there are no matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the

firnancial year that have had significantly affected either:

s the Group’s operations in financlal year 2015; or

o [ulure prospects.

The key post balance date event is the issue of 7,730,087 shares at 50,40 to raise 53,092,035 on & September 2015,
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In accordance with a resolution of directors of Medibio Limited, | state that:

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

1. In the opinicn of the directors:

a, Lhe financial statements, notes and additional disclosures included in the directors’ report designated as
audited, of the Company are in accordance with the Corparations Act 2001 including:

i giving @ true and fair viow of the of the Group's financlal position as at 30 June 2015 and aof its
performance for the year ended on that date; and

i, camplying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001,

b. an the basis of those outlined in nate 16, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be
able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable, and

= the financial stalements and notes to the financial statements are prepared In compliance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as made by the International Accounting Standards Board.

& This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to he made Lo the directors in
accordance with section 2954 of the Carparations Act 2001 for the linancial year ended 30 June 2015,

On bahalf af the Board

Chris Indermaur
Chairman

30th September 2015
Sydney MNSW
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«» William Buck

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

MEMBERS OF MEDIBIO LIMITED AND
CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Report an the Financlal Report

We have audited the accompanying consolidated linancial report comprising of Medibio Limited
{the Company) and the entities it contralled at year's end or from time to time during the financial
year {the Group). The consolidated financial reporl comprises the consolidated stalement of
financial position as at 30 June 2015, the consalidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statermnent of cash flows for the year then ended, noles comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and ather explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration.

Directors’ Responsibifity for the Financial Report

Ihe directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act
2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary ta enable the
preparation of the financlal report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material
mlsstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Mote 1, the directors also state, in accordance
with Accounting Standard AASE 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial
slatements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s Respansitility

Our respansibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based an our audit. We
canducted our audit in accordance with Australian Suditing Standards, Those standards require
that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating Lo audit engagements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from
material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence about
the amounis and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's jJudgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstaterment of the financial
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessmeants, the auditor conslders
internal control relevant to Lhe entity’s preparation of Lhe financial report that ghves a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entitys internal control. An audit
also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimatos made by the directars, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial report,

W helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sullicient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence reguirements of the
Corporations Act 2001

el st dgal lippan stk adog uider The Aam Tl
alldiils Luakiliy et by o s i
v ant finarsisl s i

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
& ADYTSORS

Lavvsd 21, 307 Qusn Stroet
Brisbane OLD 4000

GPO Box 563
Bridbane QLD 2001

Telaphone: «81 T 3220 6100
williambuck.com
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«s William Buck

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF MEDIBIO LIMITED AND
CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Auditor's Opinion
In alr opinian:
a. the financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
i giving @ true and falr view of the Group's financial position as at 30 lune 2015 and of its performance for
the year ended on thal date; and

i, complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations)
and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Mote 1.

Emphasis af Matter regarding Golng Concern

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention te Note 16(c) in the financial report which indicates that the Group
incurred losses of $7,921,702 [2014; 5428,332), the group’s current liahilities exceeded its current assets by
41,391,403 (20r14:51,693,507) and cash outflows from operations of 51,515,083 (2014:5611,257). These conditions,
along with other matters set forth in Note 16{c) Indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubit about the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore the consolidated entity may
e unable to realise its assets and discharge its llabilities in the normal course of business,

Report on the Remuneration Repart

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 9 to 15 of the directars’ report for the year ended 30
June 2015, The directors of tho company are responsible for the proparation and presentation of the Remuneration
Roport in accordance with section 3004 of the Corporations Act 2001, Our responsibility is to express an epinion on
the Remuneration Repart, based on our audit conducted in accordanee with Australian Auditing Standards.

Anditor’s Opinion
In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Medibio Limited for the year ended 30 June 2015, complies with section
3004 of the Corporations Act 2001,

Notters Relating to the Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report

This auditor's repart relates to the financial report of Medibio Limited for the vear ended 20 June
2015 included on Medibio Limited's web site. The company's directors are responsible farthe
integrity of tho Medibio Limited's web site. We have nol been engaged to report on the integrity
of the Medihio Limited's web site. The auditar's report refers only to the financial report. 1t does
; ' H H ] i CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/fram these & ADVISORS

statements. If users of this report are concerned with Lhe inherent risks arising from electronic Lovel 21, 307 Cuedn Stroet
data communications they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial report Lo Drigbane GLD 4000
ennfirim the information included in the audited financial report presented on this web site. GPO Box 563

Briabane OLD 4007
Telephone: <61 T 3229 5100

Wt.é&:ﬂ.u-.: Ricaker wilhambuck com

Willlam Buck [Qld)
ABR 11 603 627 400

M

B Aoy
& Member of the Firm
Dated this 30th day of September, 2015
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ASX ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

additional information reguired by the Australian Stock Exchange Lkd and not shown elsewhere in this reporl Is as

[allows. The information is current as al 23 September 2015,
b. Distributlon of equity securities

The numbers of shareholders, by size of holding, in each class of share are:

ORDINARY SHARES

No. of Holders Mo. of Shares
1-— 1,000 1,210 488 883
1,001 — 5,000 626 1,506,847
5,001 — 16,000 188 1,473,329
10,001 - 100,000 324 11,414,045
100,001 and over g8 B3 278,243
3,146 98,221,347
The humbor of shareholders halding less than a marketable parcel of shares
of 1,137 shares are: 1,959 541,924
c.  Twenty largest shareholders — ordinary shares guoted on ASX
The names of the twenly largest halders of quoted shares are:
Mumber of
Shares Held % Held
1 ABM Amra Clearing Sydney Nominees Pty Ltd <Custodian A/C» 7,355,839 9.90
2 Carakho Holdings Pty Ltd <KFG Family &/C> 3,675,220 4,895
3 Moneybung Pty Ltd <Moneybung Family A/C> 3,060,000 412
4 Pitt Streot Absolule Return 3,040,500 4,09
5 Samma-Yayama Pty Ltd <The Pannia AfC> 2,300,000 3.10
& LUBS Nomineas Pty Ltd 2,127,588 2.HB
7 lutland Mominees Ply Lid <Rabert Brown Family &/C> 1,666,667 2.24
8  Mining Investmaents Limited 1,600,000 2.15
0 Bond Street Custodians Limited <MMO - WEBG34 A/C 1,548,337 2.08
10 Kafta Enterprises Pty Ltd <Fayad Scttlement A/C> 1,469,541 1.8
11  Mational Mominees Limited 1,353,504 1.82
12 s Diane Phyllis Sherwood 1,082,159 1.47
13 Berpard Laverly Pry Ltd 1,039,660 1,40
14 Australian Associated Finance Py Ltd 1,000,000 135
15 Bond Street Custodians Limited <hMMO - ¥23726 AJ/C> 1,000,000 1.35
16 Mr Brady Peter Scanlon £94,191 1.20
17 L Super Pty Ltd <L Superfund A/C £93 589 1.20
18 Freeman Road Pty Ltd <THE AVENUE AfC> 870,000 117
1% Wr Meil Thompson 42,248 1,13
20 Bond Strect Custodians Limited <MMO - V19656 AJCs B33.334 1.12
37,662,377 50.68
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d. Options

There are 21,530,008 aptions currently on issue, This consists of 14,863,342 Options held by 9 option holders expiring 1
April 2018 and exercisable on the payment of 50.10 and &,666,667 Options held by 16 option holders expiring 1 April
2017 and exercisable on the payment of 50.30. All options are unlisted

a. Unguoted Securities

There are 23,929,979 ardinary shares in 2 holdings subject to escrow {unquoted securities) until 01 April 2016.

f.  Voting Rights

All ordinary sharas carry one vote per-share without restriction,

g. Substantial shareholders

The following shareholdors have notified the company as being substantial holders in the Campany,

Name Mumber Percentage
mr Claude Solitario 12,580,664 12:81
Dr Stephen Addis 12,318,734 12,55
[ris Knauer and associated entitles 6,440,541 6.5
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

ABN 58 008 130 326

This annual report covers Medibio Limited as a group comprising Medibio Limited and its subsidiaries, The Group's
functional and prescntation currency is AUD {S),

Directors

C lndermaur Chairman

K Knauer Executive Director

1 Camphell Mon-cxecutlve Director

Company Secretary
H Lees

Registered Office

Sulke 605, 50 Clarenco Strest
Sydney NSW 2000
felephane: +G1 2 9299 9580
Faczimile: +61 2 5209 9501

Legal Advisers

Thomson Geer

Level 25, 1 O'Connedl Streeat
Sydney NSW 2000

Falrweather Corporate Linyers
595 Stirling Highway
Colleslos WA GOL1

Bankers
Westpac Banking Corporation

Auditors

william Buck (Qid)

Lewel 21, 307 Queen Street
Brishane QLD 4000

Home Exchange

Australian Securities Exchange
Exchange Plaza, 2 The Esplanade
Perth WA 6000

internet Address
v Medibio.com.au

Share Registry

Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
117 Victoria Street

West End, QLD 4101

Telephone: 1300 850 505

Facsimile: {03) 9473 2500
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